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References in this Annual Report on Form 10-K tdvid Healthcare,” the “Company,” “we,” “us” and “ouréfer to AMN Healthcare
Services, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries.

PART |

Iltem 1. Business

Our Company

We are the innovator in healthcare workforce sohdiand staffing services to healthcare facildie®ss the nation. As an innovative
workforce solutions partner, our managed servicegrams, or “MSP,” vendor management systems, M3y recruitment process
outsourcing, or “RPO,” workforce consulting sengcpredictive modeling, staff scheduling and trecpment of physicians, nurses and allied
healthcare professionals into temporary and permtgsitions enable our clients to successfullyoedstaffing complexity, increase
efficiency and improve patient outcomes within thpidly evolving healthcare environment. Our clgimiclude acute and sub-acute care
hospitals, community health centers and clinicgspian practice groups, retail and urgent caréezeanhome health facilities, and several
other healthcare settings.

Our clients utilize our workforce solutions and lfeeare staffing services to manage their clinigatkforce needs, both temporary and
permanent, in an economically beneficial manner. ®anaged services program and vendor managemnsetsyenable healthcare
organizations to increase their efficiency by mangg@ll of their supplemental workforce needs tlgtowne company or technology. Short-
and long-term shortages in our clients’ workfordseadue to a variety of circumstances, includidgck of qualified, specialized local
healthcare professionals, attrition, leave scheaensus fluctuations, electronic medical recayd$EMR,” conversions and new unit
openings. Increasingly, our clients seek innovatpreven and capable partners that provide a girateophisticated and integrated clinical
workforce approach that enables them to achievie dpiplity patient outcomes more efficiently. Weided our clients contract with us based
on our value proposition of quality and serviceadbence, our comprehensive suite of innovative \iande solutions that reduce complexity,
drive efficiency, improve patient satisfaction amdcomes and provide an economic benefit, togetfitbrour execution capabilities, our
national footprint and our access to a wide netvadrkealthcare professionals. Our large numbeiosptial, healthcare facility and other
clients provides us with the opportunity to off@rsfiions to healthcare professionals typicallylirb@ states and in a variety of work
environments and clinical settings.

Healthcare professionals choose temporary assigisnfama variety of reasons that include seekiegifile work opportunities,
exploring different areas of the country and diegusactice settings, building clinical skills angerience by working at prestigious
healthcare facilities, avoiding the demands andipal environment of working as permanent staffrking through life and career
transitions, and as a means of access into a permhataff position. We provide our temporary hezdtle professionals with a competitive
compensation and benefit package that may inclusfegsional development opportunities, professitiabllity insurance, 401(k) plan and
health insurance. In addition, we may provide rairsbments for meals and incidentals, travel andinguor provide company housing if
they elect not to receive reimbursement. We belibaewe attract temporary healthcare professiathadsto our long-standing reputation for
providing a high level of service, our numerous yment opportunities, our benefit packages, onoimative marketing programs and word-
of-mouth referrals from the thousands of curremt fmmmer healthcare professionals who have workigil us.

We use distinct brands to market our different iseis/to our two client bases: (1) healthcare omgitins and (2) healthcare
professionals. We market our managed servicesiaofttravel nurse and allied recruitment servicdsospitals and healthcare facilities
generally under one brand, AMN Healthc&reas a single managed services provider with adodssalthcare professionals through multiple
recruitment brands, including American MobfileNursefinder$, NurseChoic€, NursesR¥, Med Traveler€, Club Staffing®, Rx Pro
Health®, Onward Healthcartand O’Grady Peyton Internatiorfal For our other service offerings, we generally keausing brand names,
including ShiftWise® and Medefis™ for our VMS technology, Avanta&for our clinical labor management services, Staffe®, Linde
Healthcaré® and Locum Leader%for our locum tenens businesses, and Merritt Has/kand Kendall & Davi$ for our physician permanent
placement services. Each brand has a distinct@imifocus, market strength and brand reputation.




Competition

The healthcare recruitment and workforce solutiodsistry is highly competitive. We compete in natig regional and local markets
for healthcare professionals, as well as healthfeaibty clients. We believe that our value propias is our quality and service excellence,
our comprehensive suite of innovative workforcauiohs that reduce complexity, drive efficiency pirave patient satisfaction and outcomes
and provide an economic benefit, together withexgcution capabilities, our national footprint and access to a wide network of healthe
professionals. When recruiting for healthcare msienals, in addition to other recruitment andfistgffirms, we also compete with hospital
systems that have developed their own recruitmepadments and interim staffing pools. We competééalthcare professionals primarily
based on customer service, recruitment and placeax@ertise, the quantity, diversity and qualityaghilable assignments and placement
opportunities, compensation packages and the lietiedit we provide to them while they are on assigmt.

We believe that our size, geographic scope anddspactrum of workforce solutions give us distiscialable advantages over smaller,
local and regional competitors and companies wkeséce offerings are not as robust. The breadtiuoBervices allows us to provide even
greater value through a more strategic, comprehersid integrated approach to our clients. Largarsfalso generally have a deeper, more
comprehensive infrastructure with a more establigiperating model and processes that provide thgetierm stability and foundation for
quality standards recognition, such as the Joim@ission staffing agency certification and NatioGammittee for Quality Assurance
Credentials Verification Organization certificatioWe possess certifications from both Joint Comimisand the National Committee for
Quality Assurance. We believe a solid financialisture also provides us with an advantage as thésion of payroll and housing services
are working capital intensive. With respect to maruitment and placement businesses, we gendialy access to a larger pool of available
candidates than our competitors, substantial womthauth referral networks and recognizable branties enabling us to attract a consistent
flow of new applicants.

All of our business segments operate in highly cetitipe and fragmented markets. In the nurse aletahealthcare staffing business,
we compete with a few national competitors togethigén numerous smaller, more regional and local ganies, particularly in the per diem
business. We believe we are one of the largesigemsof nurse and allied healthcare staffing mthnited States. Similarly, we believe we
are one of the largest providers of locum teneaf§isg services in the United States. The locunetenstaffing market consists of many small-
to mid-sized companies with only a relatively srmalmber of national competitors. The physician @eremt placement services market is
also highly fragmented and consists of many snalinid-sized companies that do not have a natifmdprint. Our competitors vary by
segment and include CHG Healthcare Services, @osstry Healthcare, Maxim Healthcare, Jackson Heale, Parallon and MedAssets.

Demand and Supply Drivers

Demand Drivers

. Adoption of Outsourced Workforce Solutior. Healthcare organizations are increasingly seekipfpisticated, innovative and
economically beneficial workforce solutions thapimve patient outcomes. In 2014, approximately thirel of our consolidated
revenues were generated through managed servioesr relationships. We believe the prevalencearkforce solutions, such as
MSP and VMS, in the healthcare industry is stillerpenetrated in comparison with non-healthcar®msgovhere average MSP and
VMS penetration rates are greater than 60% acaoptdithe Staffing Industry Analysts 2014 ContingBayer Survey. The changes in
reimbursement methodologies coupled with clinielor representing a significant portion of a helth facility’s cost structure
appear to be accelerating the adoption of stratgieourced workforce solutions.

. Demographics and Advances in Medicil. We believe that the demand for both temporary arthpnent healthcare professionals
increase as the United States population contittuage and medical technological advances residhiger life expectancy. Accordit
to the Bureau of Labor Statistics, the number afitacage 65 or older will grow an estimated 39%wleetn 2010 and 2020. Adults age
65 or older are three times more likely to havesgpital stay, and visit physician offices twiceadien, compared with the rest of the
population.

. Physician and Nursing Shortag. While there are differing reports of the existenoe extent of current and future healthcare
professional shortages, many regions of the UrStatkes are experiencing a shortage of physiciathsiarses that we believe will
persist in the future. According to the AssociatidAmerican Medical Colleges, the physician shgetsé expected to grow to
approximately 91,500 and 130,600 physicians in 20802025, respectively. In nursing, geographicspetialty-based shortages are
also expected through 2025. The demand for ouicgsris correlated with activity in the permanexitdr market. When nurse vacancy
rates increase, temporary nurse staffing




order levels typically increase as well. Factoet the believe are contributing to demand for ogruggment and placement services
include:

— Ading of Physician and Nurse Populatioficcording to the Association of American Medi€allleges, (1) in 2013
approximately 43% of active (i.e., licensed andkirgg at least 20 hours per week) physicians inthiged States
were 55 years or older, and (2) nearly one-thirdlgphysicians are expected to retire within tleatrien years. The
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services reddHat nurses over the age of 50 comprised 45¥edbtal
nurse population in 2008, compared with 33% in 200& National Council of State Boards of Nursing & he
Forum of State Nursing Workforce Centers conduet@813 survey, which found that 55% of the regesterurse
workforce was age 50 years or older.

— Shortage of Medical Schoal#\ shortage of qualified faculty and funding limthe availability of medical schools to
prospective physicians. Some believe that the nusniifemedical schools today may be insufficiengémerate the
number of physicians needed to address the cuarghprojected shortage.

— Healthcare Professionals Leaving Patient Cargr&mments for Different Career Opportunitie€areer opportunities
for healthcare professionals have expanded beyantidaditional bedside role. Pharmaceutical congsrinsurance
companies, HMOs and hospital management, servits@oply companies offer healthcare professiontiaciive
positions which involve work that may be perceiesdnore rewarding, and with increased compensdées,
demanding work schedules and more varied caregrgssion and opportunity.

— Physicians Leaving Private Practice Due to Bosdef Malpractice Insurance and Reimbursem@itysicians are
concerned over reimbursement levels from insurancgpanies and government agencies and frustratbdciaim
billing requirements and paperwork. The cost ofpredtice insurance is also considered a motivatopliiysicians to
leave private practice.

Increased Access to Healthcare Servi«. According to the Urban Institute, the number ningured adults decreased by 10.6

million between September 2013 and September 20&4aluninsured citizens beginning to gain acae$ealth insurance upi
implementation of the Patient Protection and Afedyig Care Act of 2010 (“PPACA").

Supply Drivers

Traditional Reasons for Healthcare ProfessionalsWdéork on a Temporary AssignmenfTemporary assignments allow
healthcare professionals to explore new areaseoflttited States, work at prestigious hospitalgnleaw skills, manage work-
life balance, earn supplemental income, build thesumes, try out different clinical settings, reeladministrative burdens,
allow for a transitional period between permanehsjand avoid unwanted workplace politics that magompany a permanent
position.

Word-of-Mouth Referrals. New applicants are often referred to us by otteaithcare professionals who have taken temporary
assignments with or been placed in a permanentigo$iy us or other staffing companies. The grointthe number of
healthcare professionals who have worked on tempasssignments or have been placed in permaneitionss as well as
growth in the number of hospital and healthcardife@s that have utilized our suite of solutionsdaservices, creates more
opportunities for referrals.

Physicians May Choose Temporary Staffing Due to teased Malpractice, Reimbursement and Collectionn€erns. Locum
tenens positions provide physicians the opportuwifgractice medicine without undue concern foréased malpractice costs,
government agency or private insurance reimburseoresollections administration.
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Nurses Choose Travel Staffing Due to the Nursingd®tage. In times of nursing shortages, permanent nunsesften require

to assume greater responsibility and patient loadsk overtime and deal with increased pressurdsinvthe hospital. Many
experienced nurses choose to leave their permangpibyer and look for a more flexible and rewardugition. This may be
offset in times of economic difficulties when geslennemployment levels may reduce hospital attritates due to nurses or
their spouses’ employment or job security concerns.

Leqislation Increasing Nurse Mobility. The Mutual Recognition Compact Legislation, proaabby the National Council of

State Boards of Nursing, allows nurses to work nficgely within states participating in the Comphegislation without
obtaining additional state licenses. As of Decenfigr2014, twenty-four states had implemented ¢lsegnition legislation.

Physicians Seeking Health System Employm. Physicians are increasingly seeking employmetit inealth systems rather

than their own practices to enhance their work#i#¢ance and achieve a more consistent income, héth for some results in
higher job satisfaction. Companies providing lodemens and direct placement opportunities arefantafe avenue for
identifying compelling career options in healthteyss.

Business Strategy

The following components comprise the key elemehtaur business strategy to expand our positiaih@snnovator in healthcare
workforce solutions and staffing services in thateh States.

Deliver Differentiated Value and Innovation in He#ticare Workforce Solution:. We continually explore diversification into

other healthcare workforce solutions, in additiotr current managed services programs, VMS, RBAsulting, and staff
scheduling services, so that we can better serveli@mts’ workforce needs. We continue to loolegpansion into other service
offerings through both internal development anéaehcquisition opportunities. When considering smgh expansion we
analyze the following key criteria: (1) the need®wr clients; (2) alignment with our core expestisf recruitment, credentialing,
and access to clinical labor; (3) strengtheninglanoddening of our client relationships; (4) reduttn exposure to economic
cycles; (5) enhancement of our long-term susta@abfferentiated business model; and (6) returineasted capital.

Strengthen and Expand Our Relationships with Hosgdg and Healthcare Facilitie.. We continue to strengthen and expand

our relationships with our current hospital anditheare facility clients, while also developing neslationships. Many hospite
and healthcare facilities seek to fulfill their hamcapital needs through a strong business pastme@ican provide
comprehensive workforce solutions, including theedepment of innovative strategies that are econallyi beneficial such as
managed services programs, VMS and RPO. Over gtdga years, hospitals and healthcare faciliteagehshown a preference
for workforce solutions that provide efficiency twprking with fewer vendors. For example, approxiehabne-third of our
consolidated revenues flow through MSP relatiorskipmpared to approximately 1% in 2008. We beltbe¢ our execution
capabilities and value proposition centered onityyaervice excellence and a suite of solutiors teduce staffing complexity,
drive efficiency and improve patient satisfactiondautcomes position us well to serve our clientgds today and in the futu

Expand Our Network of Qualified Healthcare Profegsials. Through our recruiting efforts, we continue tgard our netwol
of qualified healthcare professionals and our biteafispecialties. We have made significant investts in innovative online
recruitment, including social media and mobile tembgies to increase the efficiency and effectiwsngf our strategies to attr.
quality healthcare professionals. At the same timeecontinue to build our supply of healthcare pssfonals through referrals
from those who are currently working with, or hdeen placed by, us in the past.

Leverage Our Business Model and Technology Infragtture . We seek to increase our operational effectiverefisiency,

scalability and agility through expansion of theviee lines that we provide to each of our largeebaf hospital and healthcare
facility clients, leveraging technology and innavatmarketing and recruitment programs. We are ngakignificant
investments in our front and back office networklagations as well as our technology infrastructiaréelp ensure we are able
to achieve scale efficiencies, provide superiotauer service and meet the current and future ddmahour clients and our
healthcare professionals.

Connection through Innovative TechnologyWe continue to be an innovation leader in healthavorkforce solutions by

providing online services and tools, including VM&d scheduling technology that utilizes predictimalysis, to our hospital
and healthcare facility clients and our healthgafessionals. Through VMS, our hospital and healté facility clients
streamline their communications and process flogetture and
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manage staffing services, access credential vatific and schedule their workforce. Using our safevas a service, or “SaaS”
based scheduling technology, our clients can opérand plan their clinical workforce to cadtectively handle patient demar
Another online resource, The Service Connectiooyiges our healthcare professionals the abilityaok assignment
information and complete key forms electronically.

. Build the Strongest Team to Optimize Our Businessdél. We continue to focus on training and professialeaielopment for
all levels of management and staff and continu@r® skilled and experienced team members to dedivperior service to our
hospital and healthcare facility clients and vateur shareholders. As an employer-of-choice differentiated employment
value proposition is focused on fostering a valdeégen culture, leader and co-worker quality, depehent and career
opportunities, and a collegial work environmentriDg the first quarter of 2015 and for the thirchsecutive year, we were
awarded a spot on Achievers’ 50 Most Engaged Wardgd ™, which honors the top 50 employers in NortteAca that are
using leadership and innovation in engaging emm@syand making their workplaces more productive Wi§#ee also named one
of the World’s Most Trustworthy Companies by Forb@sgazine in 2014.

Business Overview
Services Provided

We conduct our business and provide our servigesigin three reportable segments as set forth below.

Nurse and Allied Healthcare Staffing Segment

Through our nurse and allied healthcare staffirggrsent, we provide hospital and other healthcar#itias with a range of clinical
workforce solutions, including (1) a comprehensivenaged services workforce solution in which wermamage all of the contingent needs
for a client; (2) a recruitment process outsourginagram that leverages our expertise and suppstg®s to replace or complement a client’s
existing internal recruitment function for permanstaffing needs; (3) a vendor management systéiveded via a SaaS model; (4)
traditional staffing service solutions of shortddaong-term assignment lengths; and (5) clinichblamanagement services, including
workforce consulting, data analytics, predictivedeling and SaaS-based scheduling technology throughewly acquired subsidiary,
Avantas, LLC. We set forth our nurse and alliedltheare staffing segment’s revenue and operatiogrire in “Iltem 8. Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data—Notes to Consolidated FiabBtatements—Note (1)(r).”

Nurses. We provide a wide range of nurse specialtiesdasciplines, most of whom are registered nurseasteimporary
assignments throughout the United States. Assigtsiemcute-care hospitals, including teachingtusbns, trauma centers and community
hospitals comprise the majority of our assignmehit® length of the assignment varies with a typicalel nurse assignment of 13 weeks.
also offer a shorter-term staffing solution of faareight weeks under our NurseChdtdeand to address hospitals’ urgent need for regidte
nurses. NurseChoids targeted to recruit and staff nurses who carinb&gsignments within one to two weeks in acute-acilities in
contrast to the three to five week lead time thay ime required for travel nurses. We also offealataffing. Local staffing involves the
placement of locally based healthcare professiamaldaily shift work on an as-needed basis. Holspétad healthcare facilities often give
only a few hours notice of their local staffing igssnents that require a turnaround from their stgfhgencies of generally less than 24 hc
Nurses comprised approximately 85% of the totat@and allied healthcare professionals workingifoin 2014

Allied Health ProfessionalswWe provide allied health professionals under dsahat include Med Travelefs Club Staffing® and
Rx Pro HealttPto acute-care hospitals and other healthcare tiasilsuch as skilled nursing facilities, rehabhiita clinics, and retail and mail-
order pharmacies. Allied health professionals idelsuch disciplines as physical therapists, respiraherapists, occupational therapists,
medical and radiology technologists, speech patlist®, rehabilitation assistants, pharmacists dragrpacy technicians. Allied health
professionals comprised approximately 15% of th&l taurse and allied healthcare professionals wgrkor us in 2014.

Locum Tenens Staffing Segment

Similar to our nurse and allied healthcare stafegment, through our locum tenens staffing segmenprovide our clients with (1)
managed services programs, (2) a VMS solution (@nttaditional temporary staffing (“locum tenens8rvices. We place as independent
contractors physicians of all specialties, advaredtice clinicians and dentists on a locum teresss with all types of healthcare
organizations throughout the United States, inclgdiospitals, health systems, medical groups, @taupal medical clinics, psychiatric
facilities, government institutions and insuranoepanies. We recruit these professionals nationasdktypically place them on multi-week
contracts with assignment lengths ranging from




a few days up to one year. We set forth our locemens staffing segment’s revenue and operatingriadn ‘item 8. Financial Statements ¢
Supplementary Data—Notes to Consolidated Finaigtatements—Note (1)(r).”

Physician Permanent Placement Services Segment

We provide physician permanent placement servindsmuour Merritt Hawking and Kendall & Davi€ brands to hospitals, healthcare
facilities and physician practice groups throughbetUnited States. Using a distinct consultatppraach that we believe is more client-
oriented, we perform the vast majority of our seegion a retained basis through our Merritt HawRimand, for which we are generally paid
through a blend of retained search fees and varfalls tied to work performed and successful placeénTo a smaller degree, we also
perform our services on a contingent basis exagithrough our Kendall & Davi&brand, for which fees are paid once physician catds
are ultimately hired by our clients. Our broad sak¢ offerings include over 70 specialist and syiecialist opportunities such as internal
medicine, family practice and surgery. We set fouih physician permanent placement services seggmenenue and operating income in
“Iltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementanabdotes to Consolidated Financial Statements—NO{e)(”

National Presence and Diversified Hospital and Heatare Facility Client Base

We offer healthcare professionals placement oppiits and provide staffing solutions to our cletitroughout the United States.
During each of the past three years (1) we germtadt®f our revenue (other than a de minimus artjaarthe United States and (2) all of our
long-lived assets were located in the United Statésstypically generate revenue in all 50 statagimg 2014, the largest percentages of our
revenue were concentrated in California, TexasNew York.

The majority of our temporary healthcare professi@ssignments are at acute-care hospitals. Iniaddd acute-care hospitals, we
provide services to sub-acute healthcare facilipbysician groups, rehabilitation centers, diaydinics, pharmacies, home health service
providers and ambulatory surgery centers. Our igrtlude Kaiser Foundation Hospitals, New Yorkghiyterian Health System, MedStar
Health, HCA, NYU Medical Center, Stanford Hospiald Clinics, UCLA Medical Center and Johns Hopkiteslth System. Kaiser
Foundation Hospitals (and its affiliates) to whoma provide clinical and non-clinical managed sersicemprised approximately 10% of our
consolidated revenue and 15% of our nursing amedafiealthcare staffing segment’s revenue for e gnded December 31, 2014. No other
client healthcare system comprised more than 10&un€onsolidated revenue and no single clientifacdomprised more than 3% of our
consolidated revenue for the year ended Decemhe03#. Our success in winning MSP contracts meame larger health systems have
grown and may continue to grow substantially refato our other revenue sources. The dynamics deatfito a greater client concentration
than that which we have historically experienced.

Our Business Model

We have developed and continually refine our bissimeodel to achieve greater levels of productiaityg service delivery efficiency.
We seek to optimize the communication with, andiserto, our healthcare professionals and entitieghich these healthcare professionals
are placed.

Marketing and Recruitment of New Healthcare Proféssals

We believe that we attract healthcare professidmedsiuse of our customer service and relationstigied approach, our competitive
compensation and benefits package, and our ladeigarse offering of work assignments that prowtue opportunity to work at numerous
attractive locations throughout the United Statés.believe that our multi-brand recruiting strateggkes us more effective at reaching a
larger number of healthcare professionals, whilelsteraging operational efficiencies.

In our effort to attract and retain highly qualdieealthcare professionals, we offer an attragiaekage of benefits, which may include
competitive compensation, professional developroppbrtunities, professional liability insurance 14k) plan and health insurance. In
addition, we may provide reimbursements for meatbiacidentals, travel and housing, or we may gtexaompany housing if they elect not
to receive reimbursement.

Screening, Licensing and Quality Management

We design our internal processes to ensure thdtahkthcare professionals that we directly pladé wlients have the appropriate
experience, credentials and skills. When placedssignment, we continue to evaluate our healthmafessionals to ensure adequate
performance and manage risk, as well as to deterfagsibility for future placements. To a certaiteat, we utilize subcontractors for
placement of temporary healthcare professionateiirmanaged services programs, and the subcontegeacies are responsible for the
screening, licensing and privileging of these terapphealthcare professionals.
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Our experience has shown us that well-matched plants result in more satisfied healthcare profesdsy healthcare facility clients and
patients.

Placement

Through our nurse and allied healthcare staffiggrent, we provide acute-care systems as well & btralthcare facilities with a
range of clinical workforce management and stafinfyitions. These offerings include a comprehensigaaged services workforce solution
in which we can manage all of the temporary stgffieeds for a client, a recruitment process outsogiiservice that leverages our expertise
and support systems to replace or complement @ntd existing internal recruitment function for perraatstaffing needs, VMS technolc
delivered through a SaaS model, and more traditgta#ing service solutions of short- and longatesissignment lengths. Under our national
sales approach, staffing orders are availabledaebruiters at all of our recruitment brands.

Our locum tenens staffing and physician permanktigment services segments generate nationwidesdiateboth temporary
physicians and permanent physician placement. @uniters utilize our extensive database and cawer processes to fill permanent
physician orders and schedule temporary physigaigaments.

Client Billing

We bill our clients for the temporary healthcarefpssionals on assignment based on hours and dayedv The clinician is our
employee for payroll and benefits purposes andattiem tenens provider is an independent contrattpically paid directly by us on behalf
of our clients. We bill our clients at an hourlydaily rate that effectively includes reimbursenmfemtrecruitment fees, compensation and, for
our employed temporary healthcare professionaispanefits and any applicable employer taxes. Hmydravel expenses, and meals and
incidentals, if applicable, are either includedtia hourly/daily rate or billed separately.

For our physician permanent placement servicegypieally bill clients for a search initiation felrpurs worked and expenses on the
search engagement and a non-refundable placengeohée the placement occurs.

Technology and Information Systems

Our technology infrastructure and systems are éissémthe operation of our business and achievirmgour strategic and financial
goals. Over the past three years, we have invastear digital presence on websites, social meddhraobile applications focused on lead
management and recruitment. In addition, we atherthird year of a multi-year investment in thedmmization of our front office, back
office and infrastructure domains primarily througle updating and expansion of our utilization sthelished commercially available
platforms including PeopleSoft and Salesforce.cdfa.will continue to develop and maintain proprigteechnology in areas in which we can
differentiate our service offerings for our inndvatworkforce solutions such as VMS and workforpéiraization platforms.

Risk Management

We have developed an integrated risk managemegtanrothat focuses on loss analysis, education ssgsament in an effort to redt
our operational costs and risk exposure. We relyudaralyze our losses on professional liabilityirs. and workers compensation claims to
identify trends. This allows us to focus our resmsron those areas that may have the greatesttimpas, price our services appropriately
and adjust our sales and operational approacltesethreas. We have also developed educationaliatafer distribution to our employed
healthcare professionals to address specific wajtkyi risks and documentation of clinical events.

In addition to our proactive measures, we engagergview process for incidents involving our hieedtre professionals. Upon
notification of a healthcare professional’s invahent in an incident that may result in liabilityr fias, we review his or her actions and make a
prompt determination regarding whether he or shiecantinue the assignment and whether we will plaon or her on future assignments.
We also rely on our hospital and healthcare fgailients’ assessments, national database infoomatid the state professional associations’
investigations of incidents involving our healthe@arofessionals in determining continued and fuassignments.




Regulation

The healthcare industry is subject to extensivecmdplex federal and state laws and regulatiorzdedlto professional licensure,
conduct of operations, payment for services andngay for referrals. We provide services to ourntBeon a contract basis and receive
payment directly from them. Accordingly, Medicaledicaid and managed care reimbursement policiesrgfly do not affect us directly,
though reimbursement changes in government prognaanscularly Medicare and Medicaid, can and dtiriectly affect our business. We
continuously monitor legislation and regulatory mhes for their potential effect on our business atatate or redirect resources accordin

Some states require state licensure for businéisaeemploy, assign and/or place healthcare peesavimo provide healthcare services
at hospitals and other healthcare facilities. Wele we are currently licensed in all states tieguire such licenses and take measures to
ensure compliance with all material state licensaguirements. Our travel nurse and allied heatthstaffing divisions, as well as our largest
locum tenens brand, Staff Céreand 25 of our local staffing offices have alleeed Joint Commission certification. AMN Healthedras
also obtained its Credentials Verification Orgatizracertification from the National Committee fQuality Assurance.

Most of the healthcare professionals that we emptandependently contract with are required torukvidually licensed or certified
under applicable state laws. We believe we takeagpiate and reasonable steps to validate thahealthcare professionals possess all
necessary licenses and certifications.

Employees

As of December 31, 2014, we had approximately 1@0Porate employees. During the fourth quarte2Gif4, we had an average of
6,030 nurses, allied and other clinical healthgaodessionals contracted to work for us. This dussinclude our locum tenens, all of whom
are independent contractors and not employees.

Additional Information

We incorporated in the state of Delaware on Noveribe1997. We maintain a corporate website at vammhealthcare.com. We
make available our annual reports on Form 10-Krteug reports on Form 10-Q, current reports omfr8rK and amendments to these
reports, as well as proxy statements and otherrivdtion free of charge through our website as ssoreasonably practicable after being f
with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange@éssion (“SEC”). The information found on our wigess not part of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K or any other report we file with orrish to the SEC.

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the sattentitled “Management’s Discussion and Analgdiginancial Condition and
Results of Operations,” contains “forward-lookirtgtements” within the meaning of Section 27A of 8ezurities Act of 1933, as amended
(the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Sé@ms Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “ErgbkaAct”), that are subject to safe
harbors under the Securities Act and the ExchargeWe base these forward-looking statements orcouent expectations, estimates,
forecasts and projections about future events laméhtdustry in which we operate. Forward-lookingtetents are identified by words such as
“believe,” “anticipate,” “expect,” “intend,” “plari, will,” “should,” “would,” “project,” “may,” vari ations of such words and other similar
expressions. In addition, statements that referagections of financial items; anticipated growfiliure growth and revenue; future economic
conditions and performance; plans, objectives aradegjies for future operations; and other chareettons of future events or
circumstances, are forward-looking statements.d@tual results could differ materially from thossatissed in, or implied by, these forward-
looking statements. Factors that could cause antgalts to differ from those implied by the forddooking statements in this Annual Rep
on Form 10-K are described below, elsewhere inAhisual Report on Form 10-K and our other filingishwthe SEC.

ltem 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully read the following risk factan connection with evaluating us and the forwamking statements contained in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Any of the follawgi risks could materially adversely affect our bess or our consolidated operating
results, financial condition and cash flows, whichturn, could cause the price of our common stoatecline. The risk factors described
below and elsewhere in this Annual Report on ForiKlare not the only risks we face. Factors weentty do not know, factors that we
currently consider immaterial or factors that ané specific to us, such as general economic carditimay also materially adversely affect
our business or our consolidated operating redirdencial




condition or cash flows. The risk factors describetbw qualify all forward-looking statements wekeaincluding forward-looking
statements within this section entitled “Risk Fasto

Risk Factors that May Affect the Demand for Our Seces

Economic downturns and slow recoveries could resuih less demand from clients or otherwise negativelaffect our clients, either of
which could negatively impact our financial conditon, results of operations and cash flows.

Demand for staffing services is sensitive to charigeeconomic activity. As economic activity slowsspitals and other healthcare
entities typically experience decreased attritiod eeduce their use of temporary employees befodeniaking layoffs of their regular
employees, which results in decreased demand fosasuices. In times of economic downturn and highmployment rates, permanent full
time and part time healthcare facility staff aregally inclined to work more hours and overtimesuiting in fewer available vacancies and
less demand for our services. Fewer placement appubes for our temporary clinicians and physicatso impair our ability to recruit and
place them both on a temporary and permanent basis.

Many healthcare facilities utilize temporary headtre professionals to accommodate an increasespithbadmissions. Alternatively,
when hospital admissions decrease, due to redwretimer spending, general unemployment causingcaease in under- and uninsured
patients and other factors, the demand for our tearp healthcare professionals typically declifédgs may have an even greater negative
impact on demand for physicians in certain spdemBuch as surgery, radiology and anesthesiologgddition, we may experience more
competitive pricing pressure during periods of dased patient occupancy and hospital admissiogatiuely affecting our revenue and
profitability.

During challenging economic times, our clientspaticular our clients that rely on state governtrisnding, may face issues gaining
access to sufficient credit, which could resulamimpairment of their ability to make paymentsiso timely or otherwise, for services
rendered. If that were to occur, we may increaseabowance for doubtful accounts and our daysssaigstanding would be negatively
affected.

Our business depends upon our ability to maintainxsting and secure new contracts directly with ourclients and through group
purchasing organizations.

Outside of our managed services and VMS offerings hospital, healthcare facility and physiciangic group clients are generally
free to award contracts to and place orders andseanches with our competitors. Our clients magipase these services directly or through
group purchasing organizations with whom we mutghdish relationships in order to continue to pdevour staffing services to our
healthcare facility clients.

In addition, we provide services to some of ouregoment clients through businesses such as snstidases or minority-owned
contractors who have received set-aside awardselineermediary organizations may negatively affegctability to obtain new clients and
maintain our existing client relationships by impegour ability to access and contract directlyhadtients and may also negatively affect the
profitability of these client relationships.

Consolidation and concentration in buyers of healtbare workforce solutions and staffing services codlnegatively affect pricing of our
services and our ability to mitigate credit risk.

We extend credit and payment terms to our clidntaddition to ongoing credit evaluations of ouents’ financial condition, we
traditionally seek to mitigate our credit risk byanaging client concentration. We have seen anasera our clients’ use of intermediaries
such as vendor management service companies anp guochasing organizations as well as consolidaifchealthcare systems, which may
provide these organizations enhanced bargainingepodt the same time, our own success in winningagad services contracts means ¢
larger health systems have grown and may contimgedw substantially relative to our other revesaarces. These dynamics could lead to a
greater concentration of buyers of healthcareiataffervices and less diversification of our custotyase, which could negatively affect
pricing for our services and our ability to mitigatredit risk.

One of our clients within our nurse and allied biezdre staffing segment comprised approximately d®%ur consolidated revenue in
2014. If we were to lose that client and were uadblprovide a significant amount of services tt tient, whether directly or as a
subcontractor, such loss may have a material agheffsct on our revenue, results of operationscasth flows.




If we are unable to anticipate and quickly respondo changing marketplace conditions, such as altertize modes of healthcare
delivery, reimbursement and client needs, we may moemain competitive.

The settings for the delivery of patient servicestmually evolve and implicate alternative modébealthcare delivery, such as
telemedicine. Government mandates, third-party beisements and the public’s adoption and demansuichn new modes of healthcare
delivery may negatively affect our clients’ demdadour services, which, in turn, could negativaffect our revenue, results of operations
and cash flows.

Our success depends upon our ability to developviaitive workforce solutions and quickly adapt tawehing marketplace conditions
and client needs. The success of new service éindusiness models will depend on many factoctjding our ability to properly anticipe
and satisfy client needs, quickly come into comm@with new federal or state regulations, ancediffitiate our services and abilities from
those of our competitors. Moreover, our competitizaly respond more quickly to new or emerging cliergds and marketplace conditions.
The development of these service lines and busimestels requires close attention to emerging tramdisproposed federal and state
legislation related to the healthcare industryvdfare unable to anticipate changing marketplaoditions, adapt our current business model
to adequately meet changing conditions in the heaitt industry and develop and successfully impihgimmovative services, we may not
remain competitive.

The ability of our clients to retain and increase lhe productivity of their permanent staff or their ability to increase the efficiency and
effectiveness of their internal recruiting efforts,through online recruiting or otherwise, may affectthe demand for our services, which
could negatively affect our revenue, results of opation and cash flows.

If our clients retain and increase the productiaityheir permanent clinical staff, their need éarr recruitment and placement services
for temporary positions may decline. Higher pernmrstaff retention rates and increased productvitgpermanent staff members could re
in increased efficiencies, thereby reducing the aleafrfor both our recruitment and placement senfimetemporary positions, which could
negatively affect our revenue, results of operasind cash flows. Additionally, many of our cliemsaintain internal recruitment functions of
various degrees of sophistication for their staffireeds, including utilization of online recruitméschnologies. If such clients are able to
successfully increase the efficiency and effectassnof their internal recruiting efforts, througbnm effective internet- or social media-based
recruiting or otherwise, it could reduce the demfomdbur permanent and temporary staffing serviedsch could negatively affect our
revenue, results of operation and cash flows.

Regulatory and Legal Risk Factot

We are subject to federal and state healthcare indiry regulation including conduct of operations, an costs and payment for services
and payment for referrals as well as laws regardingmployment practices and government contracting.

The healthcare industry is subject to extensivecmdplex federal and state laws and regulatiorsgedlto conduct of operations, costs
and payment for services and payment for refervaks provide workforce solutions and services oomtract basis to our clients, who pay us
directly. Accordingly, Medicare, Medicaid and inaaoce reimbursement policy changes generally ddinettly impact us. Nevertheless,
reimbursement changes in government programsgcphatiy Medicare and Medicaid, can and do indiseaffect the demand and the prices
paid for our services. For example, our clientsd@oeceive reduced or no reimbursements becauaelodnge in the rates or conditions se
federal or state governments, which would negatiafflect the demand and the prices for our serviceaddition, our hospital, healthcare
facility and physician practice group clients cosldfer civil and criminal penalties, and be exaddrom participating in Medicare, Medic:
and other healthcare programs for failure to comyith applicable laws and regulations, which magatavely affect our profitability.

A significant portion of our hospital and healthedacility clients are state and federal governnagr@ncies, where our ability to
compete for new contracts and orders, and thetpbilfty of these contracts and orders, may bectéfit by government legislation, regulation
or policy. Additionally, in providing services ttase and federal government clients and to cliesits participate in state and federal
programs, we are also subject to specific lawsragdlations, which government agencies have brat@dde to enforce. If we were to be
excluded from participation in these programs austh there be regulatory or policy changes or nicdifon of application of existing
regulations, it would likely materially adverselffext our business and our consolidated operatsglts, financial condition and cash flows.

The success of our business depends on our abilgyickly and efficiently assist in obtaining litses and privileges for our healthcare
professionals. The costs to provide these credengtiservices impact the revenue and profitabiityur business.
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We are also subject to certain laws and regulaémmicable to recruitment and placement agenti&s.all employers, we must also
comply with various laws and regulations relatingtmployment and pay practices. There is a riskvileacould be subject to payment of
additional wages, insurance and employment andoplagtated taxes. Because of the nature of ouiniess, the impact of these employment
and payroll laws and regulations may have a mavaqunced effect on our business. These laws andiatéans may also impede our ability
to grow the size and profitability of our operatson

Legislation regarding the current delivery and third-party payor system for healthcare may have signifant and unforeseeable effects
on our business.

The PPACA was signed into law on March 23, 201@& PRACA was subsequently amended on March 30, 2@1ile Reconciliation
Act. The PPACA and Reconciliation Act (collectivethe “Act”) entail sweeping health care reforms with staggeftattive dates from 201
through 2018, and many provisions in the Act regjthe issuance of additional guidance from the D&partment of Labor, the IRS, the U
Department of Health & Human Services, and thestaks the various provisions of the Act are impatad, the insurance market place and
how employers provide insurance to employees iaging causing uncertainty for our clients and nsaddition, the shifting political
landscape and commentary surrounding the Act peowidreased uncertainty and the way in which th&@®®is ultimately implemented
may have unforeseen effects on our clients and us.

The challenge to the classification of certain ofwr healthcare professionals as independent contraats could adversely affect our
profitability.

We treat physicians and certain advanced pracgitiyrsuch as certified nurse anesthetists, nuesifooners and physician assistant:
independent contractors. Federal or state taxitigpaities may take the position that such profesali®are employees exposing us to
additional wage and insurance claims, and employ@ued payroll-related taxes. A reclassificatioroaf locum tenens clinicians and
physicians to employees from independent contraatould result in liability that would have a sifigent negative impact on the profitability
of the period in which assessed, and would reduiesges to our payroll and related business presesshich could be costly. In addition,
many states have laws that prohibit non-physicianeal companies from employing physicians, refetoesis the “corporate practice of
medicine.” If our independent contractor physiciamese classified as employees in states that pitchib corporate practice of medicine, we
may be prohibited from conducting our locum tenstia$fing business in those states under our cumesiness model, which may have a
substantial negative effect on our revenue, resdiltperations and profitability.

Medical malpractice, violation of employment and wage regulations and other claims asserted against gsuld subject us to substantie
liabilities.

We, along with our clients and healthcare profassi® are subject to investigations, claims andllagtions alleging malpractice or
related legal theories. At times, plaintiffs nanseiuthese lawsuits and actions regardless of @utractual obligations, the competency of the
healthcare professionals, the standard of caraged\by the healthcare professionals, the quafigeovice that we provided or our actions
certain instances, we are contractually requirdddemnify our clients against some or all of thpetential legal actions. Additionally, we
may be subject to various employment claims, inclgdvage and hour claims, by our corporate empleyerl our employed healthcare
professionals. We are also subject to possiblenslailleging discrimination, sexual harassment dahdraimilar activities in which we or our
hospital and healthcare facility clients and tlagjents have allegedly engaged.

The nature of our business requires us to plac@ensonnel in the workplaces of other businessesyMf these individuals have acc
to client proprietary information systems and cdafitial information. An inherent risk of such adnncludes possible claims of intentional
misconduct, release, misuse or misappropriaticiient intellectual property, confidential inforniat, funds, or other property, cybersecurity
breaches affecting our clients or us, criminahaigtj torts or other claims. Such claims may reguliegative publicity, injunctive relief,
criminal investigations or charges, civil litigatiopayment by us of monetary damages or finestharanaterial adverse effects on our
business.

We maintain various types of insurance coveragguding professional liability and employment piees, through commercial
insurance carriers and a wholly-owned captive imsce company, and we self-insure for many of thygses of claims through accruals for
retention reserves. However, the cost of defendiad claims, even if groundless, could be substiatid the associated negative publicity
could adversely affect our ability to attract, retand place qualified employees and healthcarfepsmnals in the future. We may also
experience increased insurance costs and reserigaérand may not be able to pass on all or anyopoof increased insurance costs to our
clients, thereby reducing our profitability. Moresy our insurance coverage and reserve accrualswotdye sufficient to cover all claims
against us.
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We are also subject to exam from various federdlstate taxation authorities from time to time andunforeseen negative outcome
from such an exam could have a negative impactuofiimancial position, results of operations andrctiow.

Our inability to safely secure private information could subject us to substantial liabilities.

We collect, retain and have access to personalnvg#tion, personal health information and othergxtetd information. The collection,
use and maintenance of personal and health infaymist subject to numerous federal and state lawlsr@gulations. We use software
systems, security controls and business contrdimtbaccess to the information and the inadvertefease of the information. However,
private information may be accessed or releasedtioinally or unintentionally, resulting in a bréaaf privacy. A breach in privacy may
require notifications and system changes and ailsjgst us to certain fines, sanctions and legabast any or all of which may be costly. In
addition, such a breach may cause reputational gautinat could significantly impair our relationshifth our clients and healthcare
professionals.

Risk Factors Related to Our Operations, Personnatldnformation System:

Our inability to implement new infrastructure and t echnology systems may adversely affect our operagjnmesults and ability to
manage our business effectively.

We have technology, operations and human capfrastiuctures to support our existing business.nst continue to invest in these
infrastructures including implementing new opergtamd front and back office technology systemsaufapsrt our growth and improve our
efficiency, and we have embarked on a multi-yeanpb upgrade and convert our infrastructure, ludfige and front office network
platforms. Implementing new systems is costly anblives risks inherent in the conversion to a neehhology platform, including loss of
information, disruption to our normal operationisanges in accounting procedures and internal doowey financial reporting, as well as
problems achieving accuracy in the conversion eftebnic data. Failure to properly or adequatelyrasis these issues could result in
increased costs, the diversion of management'semloyees’ attention and resources and could nadljeadversely affect our operating
results, internal controls over financial reportangd ability to manage our business effectively.

Technology disruptions and obsolescence may negatly affect our business operations.

Our ability to deliver services to our clients andnanage our internal systems depends largely apoaccess to and the performance
of our management information and communicatiossesys, including our VMS and other client/healtegarofessional-facing self-service
websites. These technology systems also maintawuating and financial information upon which wepded to fulfill our financial reportin
obligations. Although we have risk mitigation measy these systems, and our access to these syatemn®t impervious to floods, fire,
storms, or other natural disasters, or servicenmpdions. There also is a potential for intenticerad deliberate attacks to our systems, which
may lead to service interruptions, data corruptiodata theft. Additionally, these systems areetittp other non-environmental risks,
including technological obsolescence and lack @itsgjic alignment with our evolving business. Weehambarked on a multi-year plan to
update and align our technology with our curremt fiture business needs. If our current or plarsystems do not adequately support our
operations, are damaged or disrupted or if we aable to replace, repair, maintain or expand themay adversely affect our business
operations and our profitability.

If we do not continue to recruit and retain sufficent quality healthcare professionals at reasonableosts, it could increase our
operating costs and negatively affect our businessd our profitability.

We rely significantly on our ability to recruit améetain a sufficient number of healthcare professi® who possess the skills, experie
and licenses necessary to meet the requirements alients. We compete with healthcare staffingipanies, recruitment and placement
agencies, including online staffing and recruitmagencies, and with hospitals, healthcare faglidied physician practice groups to attract
healthcare professionals based on the quantitgysity and quality of assignments offered, compemsgackages and the benefits that we
provide. We rely on our human capital intensivégtienship-oriented approach and national infragtme to enable us to compete in all
aspects of our business, but particularly in thesptian permanent placement business. We mustreaily evaluate and expand our
temporary and permanent healthcare professionalonketo serve the needs of our clients.

Our ability to recruit and retain temporary andrpanent healthcare professionals depends on sdaetats, including our ability to
provide our healthcare professionals with assigneand placements that they view as attractivet@apdovide competitive compensation
packages. The costs of attracting healthcare siofieals and providing them with attractive compé¢insagpackages may be higher than we
anticipate, or we may be unable to pass these ondts our hospital and
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healthcare facility clients, which may reduce orofipability. Moreover, if we are unable to recrtéimporary and permanent healthcare
professionals, our service execution may deteeosad, as a result, we could lose clients.

The inability to properly screen and match qualityhealthcare professionals with suitable placements ay negatively affect demand for
our services.

Our success depends on the quality of our heakhmafessionals. A quality or licensure issue caddersely affect our business, cli
demand for our services, and potential for groltir ability to ensure the quality of our healthcprefessionals relies heavily on the
effectiveness of our data and communication systsnsell as properly trained and competent oparatiemployees that screen and match
healthcare professionals in suitable placementsnalility to properly screen, match, and moniteakhcare professionals for acceptable
credentials, experience, and performance may adiesds to lose confidence in our services, whicdymamage our reputation and result in
clients opting to utilize competitors’ servicesrely on their own internal resources.

Our operations may deteriorate if we are unable t@ontinue to attract, develop and retain our salesral operations team members.

Our success depends heavily upon the performangercfales and operations team members. The nurhbetividuals who meet our
qualifications for these positions is limited, amd may experience difficulty in attracting qualdfieandidates. In addition, we commit
substantial resources to the training, developrardtsupport of our team members. Competition fadified sales team members in the line
of business in which we operate is strong, and \ag not be able to retain some of our sales teambeesrafter we have expended the time
and expense to recruit and train them.

The loss of key officers and management personnawd adversely affect our business and operating seilts.

We believe that the success of our business syrated) our ability to maintain our recent levelgpobfitability depends on the continu
employment of our senior management team. We haesgployment agreement with Susan R. Salka, owid&net and Chief Executive
Officer, through May 4, 2016, which is renewableasnannual basis. Other senior members of the &garamployees at will with standard
severance agreements. If members of our seniorgeament team become unable or unwilling to continuéeir present positions, our
business and financial results could be adverdédgtad.

Our inability to maintain our positive brand awareness and identity may adversely affect our resultsf @perations.

We have invested substantial amounts in acquidageloping and maintaining our brands, and ouressdepends substantially on our
ability to maintain positive brand awareness id@gifor existing services and effectively buildimg brand awareness and image for new
services. We cannot assure that additional expeneditand our continuing commitment to marketing iamgroving our brands will have the
desired effect on our brands’ value, which may asklg affect our results of operations. In additioar brands may suffer reputational
damage that could negatively affect our short-land-term financial results.

Our inability to effectively incorporate acquisitions into our business operations may adversely affegur results of operations.

We invest time and resources in carefully assesgipgrtunities for acquisitions, and made acquisgiin 2013, 2014 and early 2015 to
broaden the scope and depth of our workforce swiatand bolster our staffing services. Despitgéliice and integration planning,
acquisitions still present certain risks, includthg time and economic costs of integrating an isttépn’s technology, control and financial
systems, unforeseen liabilities, and the diffi@dtin bringing together different work cultures gaisonnel. Difficulties in integrating our
acquisitions may adversely affect our results arapons.

We maintain a substantial amount of goodwill and idefinite-lived intangibles on our balance sheet thamay decrease our earnings or
increase our losses if we recognize an impairment goodwill or indefinite-lived intangibles.

We maintain goodwill on our balance sheet, whigiresents the excess of the total purchase prioaradcquisitions over the fair value
of the net assets and indefinite-lived intangillesacquired. We evaluate goodwill and indefitited intangibles for impairment annually,
when evidence of potential impairment exists. Ifidentify an impairment, we record a charge to i@%1 An impairment charge to goodwill
or indefinite-lived intangibles would decrease earnings or increase our losses, as the case mahlwd may adversely affect the price of
our common stock.
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Risk Factors Related to Our Indebtedness and Oth&bilities

We have substantial tax and insuranceelated accruals on our balance sheet, and any sificant adverse adjustments in these accrua
may decrease our earnings or increase our lossescanegatively impact our cash flow.

We maintain accruals related to our captive instearompany for professional liability and employmeractices, and self-insured
retention accruals for our health insurance, wark@mpensation and employment practices relatettraain our balance sheet. A signific
increase to these accruals may decrease our esriifegdetermine the adequacy of our accruals biyatiag our historical experience and
trends, related to both insurance claims and pagsnariormation provided to us by our insurancekiers, attorneys, third-party
administrators, actuarial firms and tax advisorsvalf as industry experience and trends. If suébrination collectively indicates that our
accruals are overstated or understated, we redym®wide for additional accruals, as appropriate.

In addition, we maintain an unrecognized tax baseftcrual related to certain income tax positibas we have taken. As of
December 31, 2014, the unrecognized tax benefitading interest and penalties was $28.7 millidwjustments in the amount or nature of
accruals for tax matters may negatively impactfouancial results and our cash flow, if there aagmpents to governmental agencies
associated with these tax positions.

Our level of indebtedness could adversely affect ofuture financial condition.

We are party to a credit agreement, which contem®us financial covenants, restricts the payneélividends, and limits the amount
of repurchases of our common stock. As of DecerBheR014, our total debt outstanding equaled $162llibn.

Our indebtedness could have a material adverseteffeour financial condition by, among other tling

. increasing our vulnerability to a downturn imgeal economic conditions or to increases in irsterates, particularly with
respect to the portion of our outstanding debt ighatbject to variable interest rates;

. potentially limiting our ability to obtain additiah financing or to obtain such financing on favdeaterms

. causing us to dedicate a portion of future disk from operations to service or pay down ourtdelhich reduces the cash

available for other purposes, such as operati@mstat expenditures, and future business opporasmiand

. possibly limiting our ability to adjust to changingarket conditions and placing us at a competiigadvantage compared to
competitors who may be less leveraged.

Our ability to service our indebtedness will dependbur ability to generate cash in the future. d&enot assure you that our business
will generate sufficient cash flow from operatiarsthat future borrowings will be available in an@unt sufficient to enable us to service our
indebtedness or to fund other liquidity needs. Aiddally, if we are not in compliance with the cots in our credit agreement, we would
be in default, and the lenders could call the dehtch would have a material adverse effect onbusiness.

ltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen

None.

Item 2. Properties

We lease all of our properties, which consist diceftype facilities. We believe that our leased@pis adequate for our current needs
and that we can obtain adequate space to meebmsekable business needs. We have pledged sidibtatitof our leasehold interests to
our lenders under our credit agreement to secureldigations thereunder. We set forth below oumgipal leased office spaces as of
December 31, 2014 together with our business seigntieat utilize them:

Location Square Feet
San Diego, California (corporate headquarters drmbgments) 175,67.
Irving, Texas (all segments) 93,40(
Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

We are subject to various claims and legal actinrise ordinary course of our business. Some cfetmeatters relate to professional liability,
tax, payroll, contract and employee-related matesinclude individual and collective lawsuitsvas| as inquiries and investigations by
governmental agencies regarding our employmentipesc We currently are not aware of any pendinth@atened litigation that we believe
is reasonably possible to have a material advéfset®n our results of operations, financial piasitor liquidity.



Additionally, some of our clients may also becombject to claims, governmental inquiries and inigegions and legal actions relating
to services provided by our healthcare profess@riabm time to time, and depending upon the pdaidacts and circumstances, we may be
subject to indemnification claims under our consatith such clients relating to these matters.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure
Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market For Registran’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters ars$lier
Purchases of Equity Securitie
Our common stock trades on the New York Stock Ermgbaunder the symbol “AHS.” The last reported sdleur common stock on

February 20, 2015 on the New York Stock Exchange $22.51 per share. The following table sets fddihthe periods indicated, the high
and low sales prices reported by the New York Stexthange.

Sales Price
High Low
Year Ended December 31, 2013
First Quarter $ 159, % 10.3¢
Second Quarter $ 1591 $ 12.2¢
Third Quarter $ 16.2C $ 13.5C
Fourth Quarter $ 148t $ 11.3(
Year Ended December 31, 2014
First Quarter $ 154t % 13.3(
Second Quarter $ 14.3¢ $ 10.3¢
Third Quarter $ 16.31 $ 11.9¢
Fourth Quarter $ 20.3: $ 15.0¢

During the quarter ended December 31, 2014, neitkanor any “affiliated purchaser” on our behalfuechased any shares of our
common stock. During the fiscal year ended DecerBthe2014, we did not sell any equity securities there not registered under the
Securities Act.

As of February 20, 2015, there were 25 stockholdérecord of our common stock, one of which wasl€C& Co., a nominee for The
Depository Trust Company. All of our common stoeichby brokerage firms, banks and other financisfiiutions as nominees for benefic
owners are considered to be held of record by @e@e., which is considered to be one stockholdereebrd. A substantially greater number
of holders of our common stock are “street namejemeficial holders, whose shares are held of debgtbanks, brokers and other financial
institutions. Because such shares are held ontahstbckholders, and not by the stockholdersatiye and because a stockholder can have
multiple positions with different brokerage firmmnks and other financial institutions, we are Um#d determine the total number of
stockholders we have without undue burden and esepen

We have not paid any dividends on our common sitothe past and currently do not expect to pay cigdends or make any other
distributions on common stock in the future. Weentfo retain our future earnings, if any, for uséhe operation and expansion of our
business and to pay down debt. Any future detertioindo pay dividends on common stock will be & thiscretion of our board of directors
and will depend upon our financial condition, réswlf operations, capital requirements and suclrdtttors as the board deems relevant. In
addition, our ability to declare and pay dividemdisour common stock is subject to covenants réistgicuch actions in our credit agreement.
See “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and AnalysiEmancial Condition and Results of Operations—tlidlity and Capital Resources.”

The information required by Item 201(d) of ReguatS-K is incorporated by reference to the tabtdas¢h in Part Ill, Item 12 entitled
“Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Ownerslatanagement and Related Stockholder Matters” below
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Performance Graph

This performance graph shall not be deemed “filadth the SEC or subject to Section 18 of the Exgkakct, nor shall it be deemed
incorporated by reference in any of our filings enthe Exchange Act or the Securities Act.

The graph below compares the total stockholdermedn our common stock with the total stockholdgum of (i) the NYSE
Composite Index, and (ii) the Dow Jones US Busifi@aging & Employment Agencies Index (“BTEA"assuming an investment of $100
December 31, 2009 in our common stock, the stookgcising the NYSE Composite Index, and the statkaprising the BTEA.

COMPARISON OF 5§ YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN®

Among AMM Healthcare Senvices, Inc., the NYSE Composite Index,
andthe Dow Jones LS BusinessTraining & Employment Agencies Index

$250

$200 -

$150 -

$100 (=

S"D L 1l il 1l Il
12/09 1210 12111 1212 1213 1214
— AKIN Healthcare Services, Inc.
— NY SE Composite
Dow Jones US Business Training & Employment Agencies
*2100 invested on 12/31/0% in stock or index, including reinvestment of dividends.
Fizcal year ending December 31.
Copyright® 2015 Dow Jones & Co. Allrights reserved.
12/31/09 12/31/10 12/31/11 12/31/12 12/31/13 12/31/14
AMN Healthcare Services, Inc. 100.0( 67.7i 48.9( 127.4¢ 162.2¢ 216.3¢
NYSE Composite 100.0( 113.3¢ 109.0¢ 126.4. 159.7: 170.4¢
BTEA 100.0( 120.4¢ 79.2¢ 89.57 150.4¢ 158.0¢
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

You should read the selected financial and opegatata presented below in conjunction with “lterM&nagement’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems” and “Item 8. Financial Statements and Seipeintary Data” below. We derive our
statements of operations data for the years engedrbber 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, and the balaeet data at December 31, 2014 and
2013 from the audited financial statements incluelsdwhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. \@&uk the statements of operations
data for the years ended December 31, 2011 and&td €he balance sheet data at December 31, 2012,ahd 2010 from audited financial
statements of ours that do not appear herein.

We completed our acquisition of NF Investors, lacQelaware corporation (“NFI”), on September 11@0Accordingly, the
consolidated statement of operations for the yeded December 31, 2010 includes the result of tipasaof NFI since the date of

acquisition. Our acquisition of NFI in Septembef@@&ffects the comparability of the selected finaindata of the pre-acquisition time period
and post-acquisition time period.

During the fourth quarter of 2011, we decided tgedt our home healthcare services segment. Acalydiwe classify the home
healthcare services segment as a disposal grodgdredale as of December 31, 2011 and its resfilbperations as discontinued operations
for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 an@, 204 only three years in which we maintained médealthcare services segment. We
completed the sale of this segment in January 2012.

We completed our acquisition of ShiftWise on Novemp0, 2013. Accordingly, the consolidated stateroéoperations for the year
ended December 31, 2013 includes the result ofatipes of ShiftWise since the date of acquisiti@nr acquisition of ShiftwWise in
November 2013 affects the comparability of the ctele financial data of the f-acquisition time period and post-acquisition tipegiod.

We completed our acquisition of Avantas on Decen2e2014. Accordingly, the consolidated statenoémiperations for the year
ended December 31, 2014 includes the result ofatipes of Avantas since the date of acquisition.

We have not paid any cash dividends during the fpesfiscal years.
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Consolidated Statements of Operations:

Revenue

Cost of revenue

Gross profit

Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment charges

Total operating expenses

Income (loss) from operations
Interest expense, net, and other

Fiscal Years Ended December 31,

Income (loss) from continuing operations before

income taxes
Income tax expense (benefit)
Income (loss) from continuing operations

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, ne

tax
Net income (loss)

Basic income (loss) per common share from:

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income (loss)

Diluted income (loss) per common share from:

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income (loss)

Weighted average common shares outstanding

Basic
Diluted

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

Total notes payable, including current portion and

discount
Total stockholders’ equity

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(in thousands, except per share data)
$ 1,036,02 $ 1,011,811 $ 953,95. $ 887,46¢ 669,91:
719,91( 714,53t 683,55¢ 638,14 485,55(
316,11° 297,28 270,39° 249,31¢ 184,36
232,22: 218,23: 202,90: 195,34¢ 162,54:
15,99: 13,54¢ 14,15 16,32¢ 14,76¢
— — — — 50,83
248,21 231,77¢ 217,05! 211,67: 228,13¢
67,90 65,50z 53,34: 37,64% (43,77
9,231 9,66% 26,01¢ 23,72 19,76:
58,66¢ 55,83} 27,32 13,92( (63,539
25,44¢ 22,90« 11,01( 8,904 (20,787
33,21, 32,93 16,31 5,01¢ (52,752
— — 82¢ (31,28)) 761
$ 33217 $ 32,93: $ 17,13¢  $ (26,265 (51,997
$ 071 $ 07z % 03¢ $ 0.1Z (1.57)
— — 0.0z (0.79) 0.0z
$ 071 $ 0.7z $ 0.3t $ (0.6€) (1.49
$ 0.6 $ 0.6 $ 03 % 0.11 (1.57)
— — 0.0z (0.6¢) 0.0z
$ 0.6 $ 0.6 $ 037 $ (0.57) (1.49
46,50¢ 45,96 41,63: 39,91 34,84(
48,08¢ 47,78 46,70¢ 45,95! 34,84(
As of December 31,
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)
$ 13,070 $ 15,58( $ 5681 $ 3,96% 1,88:
681,91¢ 604,28t 517,38¢ 535,63: 562,11(
144,37: 148,67 158,17¢ 202,32 214,68t
256,58: 217,74: 182,11: 135,65¢ 153,45!
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Item 7.Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionnal Results of Operatios

You should read the following discussion in confim with our consolidated financial statements Hrelnotes thereto and other
financial information included elsewhere in thisrAral Report on Form 10-K. Certain statements i thfanagement’s Discussion and
Analysis (“MD&A") of Financial Condition and Resslof Operations” are “forward-looking statementege “Special Note Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements” under Item 1, “Busine¥ge intend this MD&A section to provide you with armative from the perspective
our management on our financial condition, reseiltsperations, liquidity and certain other facttivat may affect our future results. The
following sections comprise this MD&A:

. Overview

. Management Initiative

. Recent Trenc

. Critical Accounting Policies and Estima
. Results of Operatiol

. Liquidity and Capital Resourc

. Off-Balance Sheet and Other Financing Arrangen
. Contractual Obligatior
. Potential Fluctuations in Quarterly Results andsaality
. Inflation
. Recent Accounting Pronounceme
Overview

We conduct business through three reportable setgnmamrse and allied healthcare staffing, locunetsrstaffing and physician
permanent placement services. For the year endeeniier 31, 2014 , we recorded revenue of $1,038lidm as compared to revenue of
$1,011.8 million for 2013 . We recorded net incamh&33.2 million for 2014 , as compared to $32.49iar for 2013 .

Nurse and allied healthcare staffing segment reveomprised 67% and 68% of total consolidated needar the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Througiorse and allied healthcare staffing segmengpneeide hospital and other healthcare
facilities with a range of clinical workforce salons, including: (1) a comprehensive managed seswolution in which we manage all of the
temporary nursing and allied staffing needs ofient] (2) a software as a service, or “Saa8\IS through which our clients can manage a
their temporary nursing and allied staffing ned8straditional clinical staffing solutions of vable assignment lengths; (4) a recruitment
process outsourcing program that leverages ourgs@and support systems to replace or complemehiént’s existing internal recruitment
function for permanent placement needs; and (Bjczli labor consulting management services.

Locum tenens staffing segment revenue comprised@8%28% of total consolidated revenue for theyeaded December 31, 2014
and 2013, respectively. Through our locum tenémf§isg segment, we provide (1) a comprehensiveagad services solution in which we
manage all of the locum tenens needs of a clighta SaaS VMS through which our clients can marigef their locum tenens needs; and
(3) placement of physicians of all specialtieswad as dentists and other advanced practice peosjdvith clients on a temporary basis as
independent contractors. These locum tenens pnevade used by our healthcare facility and physipieactice group clients to fill temporary
vacancies created by vacation and leave schedutedridge the gap while they seek permanentidates or explore expansion. Our
locum tenens clients represent a diverse groupaltincare organizations throughout the United Stateluding hospitals, health systems,
medical groups, occupational medical clinics, p&fit facilities, government institutions and ingace entities. The professionals we place
are recruited nationwide and are typically placedralti-week contracts with assignment lengths magdrom a few days up to one year.

Physician permanent placement services segmemuevamprised 4% of total consolidated revenue#ah of the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013 . Through our physésmanent placement services segment, we assptdisshealthcare facilities and
physician practice groups throughout the UnitedeStan identifying and recruiting physicians for
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permanent placement. We perform the vast majofiuo services on a retained basis through our iétawkins® brand, for which we are
generally paid through a blend of retained seagels find variable fees tied to work performed andessful placement. To a smaller degree,
we also perform our services on a contingent basgidusively through our Kendall & Davfdbrand, for which fees are paid once physician
candidates are ultimately hired by our clients. Buarad specialty offerings include over 70 spesialind sub-specialist opportunities such as
internal medicine, family practice and orthopedicgery.

Management Initiatives

Our growth strategy focuses on providing an innieeaénd differentiated value and experience toalients and healthcare
professionals. To accomplish this, we have broadlene service offerings beyond our traditional #lanurse and allied temporary staffing,
locum tenens staffing, and physician permanentephant services, to include more strategic and riegurevenue sources from innovative
workforce solutions offerings such as managed seswprograms, VMS, RPO and clinical labor managém@msulting. Through these
differentiated services, we have built strategiatienships with our clients to assist them in imyng their financial, operational and patient
care results through enhanced productivity, lafpdintization and candidate quality enhancement. @rgisually seek strategic opportunities
to expand into complementary service offerings baatrage our core capabilities of recruiting aretlentialing healthcare professionals,
while providing a more recurring stream of revethag reduces our exposure to economic cycle riskhé same time, we continue to invest
in our innovative workforce solutions, new candéegcruitment initiatives and technology infrastuue to capitalize on the demand growth
we are experiencing and expect to continue inuh#&é due to the impact of healthcare reform, tfiegapopulation and shortages within
certain regions and disciplines.

Recent Trends

The healthcare staffing environment improved thfmg the second half of 2014 and into the firstrtpreof 2015. Demand in our tra
nurse and allied healthcare staffing businesssigiisficantly above prior-year levels. This demandwth has translated into increased
booking levels for future assignments as well adtheare professionals currently on assignment.l@uwm tenens business has also
experienced increased demand over the same peitiodignificant increases in the majority of spdtts.

We continue to see clients migrate to managedes\program relationships, and during the yeardéBaeember 31, 2014, revenue
from these contracts represented approximately @béar nurse and allied healthcare staffing segmargnue. With the inclusion of
ShiftWise and the newly acquired Avantas and Medefitities and continued penetration of managedcsarprograms, we expect that
revenue attributable to our suite of workforce sohs offerings will continue to grow. Through auanaged services program relationships,
we have an improved ability to fill more of the d@ma and create operational efficiencies. Althoughgross margins have improved
compared to 2013, we are experiencing an increalleusingrelated costs as a constrained rental market a@gito drive rental rates higl
We have partially mitigated this impact by contiagtwith new lower cost rental properties and tigtobill rate increases. In addition, with
the significant demand increases, we have recerfigrienced some compression in our pay to bidagpas we have increased pay rates to
attract more nursing professionals into our industhis competitive market for supply has allowexdta negotiate increased bill rates with
clients to mitigate the gross margin impact.

In our locum tenens staffing segment, our managedces program offering is growing as we add nbents and increase penetration
with existing clients. Revenue from MSP contrantyéased from 5% in 2013 to 12% in 2014.

Throughout 2014 and into 2015, we have experiestretig demand for our services within our physigiarmanent placement services
segment. We have also seen an increase in ouitezqueoductivity completing searches, which hasistated into improved profitability.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our critical accounting policies are described mté\(1) to our Consolidated Financial Statementgained in Item 8 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. Critical accounting policies ¢hose that we believe are both important tqtrérayal of our financial condition and
results and require our most difficult, subjectbrecomplex judgments, often as a result of the rnieedake estimates about the effect of
matters that are inherently uncertain. The prejmaraif our consolidated financial statements infoomity with United States generally
accepted accounting principles requires us to neakienates and judgments that affect our reportesliats of assets and liabilities, revenue
and expenses, and related disclosures of contirgsets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, veduate our estimates and base them on the
information that is currently available to us amdvarious other assumptions that we believe aisoreable under the circumstances. Actual
results could
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vary from these estimates under different assumgtir conditions. We believe that the followingicel accounting policies affect the more
significant judgments and estimates used in thpasetion of our consolidated financial statements:

Goodwill and Indefinite-lived Intangible Assets

Our business acquisitions typically result in thearding of goodwill and other intangible assetsl #the recorded values of those assets
may become impaired in the future. The determimatiothe value of such intangible assets requirasagement to make estimates and
assumptions that affect our consolidated finarst@iements. For intangible assets purchased isiadas combination, the estimated fair
values of the assets received are used to estdhdisirecorded values. In accordance with accagrguidance on goodwill and other
intangible assets, we perform annual impairmenlyaigato assess the recoverability of the goodavilll indefinite-lived intangible assets. We
assess the impairment of goodwill of our reportimgs and indefinite-lived intangible assets aniyyar more often if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value natybe recoverable. We may first assess qualitétietrs to determine whether it is more
likely than not that the fair value of a reportimgit is less than its carrying amount. If, aftesessing the totality of events and circumstances,
we determine that it is more likely than not tha fair value of the reporting unit is greater thitarcarrying amount, the quantitative
impairment test is unnecessary. If the reportinig dmes not pass the qualitative assessment, flgereporting unit’s carrying value is
compared to its fair value. The fair values of téporting units are estimated using market andbdisted cash flow approaches. Goodwill is
considered impaired if the carrying value of theorting unit exceeds its fair value. Applicationtbé& goodwill impairment test requires
judgment, including the identification of reportingits, assignment of assets and liabilities t@riépg units, assignment of goodwiill
reporting units, and determination of the fair \eabf each reporting unit. Valuation techniques iasat with the market approach and
income approach are used to measure the fair eéleach reporting unit. Significant judgments argquired to estimate the fair value of
reporting units including estimating future cashwit, and determining appropriate discount ratesytir rates, company control premium and
other assumptions. Changes in these estimatessanthptions could materially affect the determimatib fair value for each reporting unit.
We perform our annual impairment test on Octobeof3ach year.

Intangible assets with estimable useful lives arpiired to be amortized over their respective egtohuseful lives and reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circurastaimdicate that the carrying amount may not bewerable. An impairment evaluation
is based on an undiscounted cash flow analysiedbtvest level at which cash flows of the longetivassets are largely independent of other
groups of assets and liabilities. We assess paténtpairments to intangible assets when theriteace that events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amouinoéisset or asset group may not be recovered u@gmients regarding the existence of
impairment indicators and future cash flows relatethtangible assets are based on operationabipeaince of our businesses, market
conditions and other factors. Although there ahefent uncertainties in this assessment procesgstimates and assumptions we use,
including estimates of future cash flows, voluntaarket penetration and discount rates, are consigi¢h our internal planning. If these
estimates or their related assumptions changeeifutiire, we may be required to record an impaitrabarge on all or a portion of our long-
lived intangible assets. Furthermore, we cannaliptehe occurrence of future impairment-triggerewgnts nor the impact such events might
have on our reported asset values. Future eveuld cause us to conclude that impairment indicagaist and that long-lived intangible
assets associated with our acquired businessénpaged.

Professional Liability Reserve

We maintain an accrual for professional liabilinat we include in accounts payable and accruednsgseand other long-term liabilities
in our consolidated balance sheets. We determamadkquacy of this accrual by evaluating our hisabexperience and trends, loss reserves
established by our insurance carriers, managennehnthérd-party administrators, and our independetuarial studies. We obtain actuarial
studies on a sen@innual basis that use our historical claims dathirgustry data to assist us in determining thejadey of our reserves ea
year. For periods between the actuarial studiesew@rd our accruals based on loss rates provid#teimost recent actuarial study
management's review of loss history. In Novembd22@ve established a captive insurance subsididrich provides coverage, on an
occurrence basis, for professional liability witltar nurse and allied healthcare staffing segmeahilities include provisions for estimated
losses incurred but not yet reported (“IBNR”), agllvas provisions for known claims. IBNR reservéraates involve the use of assumptions
and are primarily based upon historical loss exgpee, industry data and other actuarial assumptilesmaintain excess insurance coverage
through a commercial carrier for losses above #reopcurrence retention.

Workers Compensation Reserve

We maintain an accrual for workers compensation¢chvive include in accrued compensation and benafitsother londerm liabilities
in our consolidated balance sheets. We determaadbquacy of these accruals by evaluating owrfdat experience and trends, loss
reserves established by our insurance carriershamtiparty administrators, and our independent actuatiadies. We obtain updated actue
studies on a semi-annual basis that use our paymdlhistorical ¢
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laims data, as well as industry data, to deterritiveappropriate reserves for each policy year peaods between the actuarial studies, we
record our accruals based on loss rates providdteimost recent actuarial study.

Accounts Receivable

We record accounts receivable at the invoiced ama@wtounts receivable are non-interest bearing.rivdetain an allowance for
doubtful accounts for estimated credit losses tegufrom collection risk, including the inabiligf our customers to make required payments
under contractual agreements. We report the alloevéor doubtful accounts as a reduction of accorgusivable in our consolidated balance
sheets. We determine the adequacy of this allowap@yaluating historical delinquency and write-wénds, the financial condition and
credit risk and history of each customer, histdnizyment trends as well as the current economiditions and the impact of such conditic
on our customers’ liquidity and overall financianglition. If the financial condition of our custorsedeteriorates, affecting their ability to
make payments, additional allowances would be pliexii We also maintain a sales allowance to rederymtential credits issued to
customers. We determine the amount of the resexsedbon historical credits issued.

Contingent Liabilities

From time to time, we are involved in various lawtsuclaims, investigations, and proceedings thiaean the ordinary course of
business. Additionally, some of our clients maydlecome subject to claims, governmental inquaies investigations and legal actions
relating to services provided by our healthcardgasionals. From time to time, and depending uperparticular facts and circumstances,
may be subject to indemnification obligations under contracts with such clients relating to thessdters. Certain of the above-referenced
matters may include speculative claims for subg&that indeterminate amounts of damages. We readiability when we believe that it is
both probable that a loss has been incurred andrnieint can be reasonably estimated. Significatgment is required to determine both
probability and the estimated amount. We revieve¢hgrovisions at least quarterly and adjust thes@gions accordingly to reflect the
impact of negotiations, settlements, rulings, aeldtlegal counsel, and updated information. Weekelthat the amount or estimable rang
reasonably possible loss, will not, either indivatly or in the aggregate, have a material adveffeeteon our business, consolidated financial
position, results of operations, or cash flows weéhpect to loss contingencies for legal and atbatingencies as of December 31, 2014.
However, the outcome of litigation is inherentlycartain. Therefore, if one or more of these legatters were resolved against us for
amounts in excess of management’s expectationsesults of operations and financial conditionJuing in a particular reporting period,
could be materially adversely affected.

Income Taxes
We evaluate our unrecognized tax benefits in a@mard with the guidance for accounting for uncetyaimincome taxes. We recognize
the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position ahlyis more likely than not that the tax posiiiwill be sustained on examination by the

taxing authorities, based on the technical mefite® position. The tax benefits recognized infthancial statements from such a position are
measured based on the largest benefit that hasategthan 50% likelihood of being realized updimate settlement.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the periodsioaded, certain statements of operations datgpascentage of revenue. Our results of
operations include three reportable segments:yfgenand allied healthcare staffing; (2) locum tengtaffing; and (3) physician permanent
placement services. Our historical results areneoessarily indicative of our results of operatitmbe expected in the future.

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Consolidated Statements of Operations:
Revenue 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of revenue 69.5 70.6 71.7
Gross profit 30.5 29.4 28.3
Selling, general and administrative 22.4 21.6 21.3
Depreciation and amortization 15 1.3 15
Income from operations 6.6 6.5 5.5
Interest expense, net, and other 0.9 1.0 2.7
Income from continuing operations before incometax 5.7 5.5 2.8
Income tax expense 25 2.3 1.2
Income from continuing operations 3.2 3.2 1.6
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax — — 0.1
Net income 3.29, 3.2 1.7

Comparison of Results for the Year Ended Decembgr 3014 to the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Revenue Revenue increased 2% to $1,036.0 million for 2@t $1,011.8 million for 2013 , as a result oftég revenue in all
three of our reportable segments.

Nurse and allied healthcare staffing segment revémereased 2% to $695.2 million for 2014 from &6&8million for 2013 . The
increase was primarily due to the addition of SMiffe revenue and an increase in bill rates duhiegyear ended December 31, 2014 . The
increase was patrtially offset by a 3% decreaskeraterage number of healthcare professionalssigrasent, which partially resulted from
decreased volume of electronic medical recordistafngagements during the year ended Decemb@034, .

Locum tenens staffing segment revenue increasetb3296.2 million for 2014 from $287.5 million f@013 . The increase was
primarily attributable to a 6% increase in revepeeday filled, partially offset by a 2% decrease¢hie number of days filled during the year
ended December 31, 2014 .

Physician permanent placement services segmeniuevacreased 5% to $44.7 million for 2014 from #4illion for 2013 . The
increase was primarily due to the increase inlb#active searches and placements during theeywled December 31, 2014 .

Gross Profit.  Gross profit increased 6% to $316.1 million 204 from $297.3 million for 2013 , representimggs margins of
30.5% and 29.4% , respectively. The increase isaliated gross margin was primarily due to angase in gross margin in all three of our
reportable segments. The nurse and allied heaétlstaffing segment increase was primarily due gbdri bill to pay spreads during the year
ended December 31, 2014 and the addition of theehignargin ShiftWise business, which we acquiredawember 2013. The locum tenens
staffing segment increase was primarily due to diddill to pay spreads during the year ended Deeeb, 2014 . The physician permanent
placement services segment increase was primaréytala decrease in recruiter compensation ascemtege of revenue during the year
ended December 31, 2014 . Gross margin rate bytedpe segment for 2014 and 2013 was 28.8% and&, te&spectively, for nurse and
allied healthcare staffing, 29.3% and 29.1%, rethpelg, for locum tenens staffing, and 64.4% andré®, respectively, for physician
permanent placement services.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A™)penses were $232.2 million,
representing 22.4% of revenue, for 2014 , as coetpiar $218.2 million , representing 21.6% of rewverfar 2013 . The increase in SG&A
expenses was due primarily to the addition of byfedr of our ShiftWise business in 2014, a $3.Dioni
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gain on the holdback settlement in connection WithNFI acquisition, which was recorded in unaltedacorporate overhead during the year
ended December 31, 2013, and higher expenses difiyassociated with our information technologtiatives to support our current
demand and future growth initiatives. For more infation on the holdback settlement, see “Iltem BaR¢ial Statements and Supplementary
Data—Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements-elitid)(b), Treasury Stock.” The increase was garidfset by $2.7 million and $2.1
million favorable actuarial-based decreases inppafessional liability reserves in our locum tensteffing segment and nurse and allied
healthcare staffing segment, respectively, duriregyiear ended December 31, 2014, as comparedd® afllion unfavorable actuarial-based
increase in our professional liability reservesi@hhwas comprised of a $2.2 million unfavorableuacial-based increase in our locum tenens
staffing segment, partially offset by a $1.4 millitavorable actuarial-based decrease in our nunrd@klied healthcare staffing segment)
during the year ended December 31, 2013. SG&A esgshroken down among the reportable segmentdpcatald corporate overhead and
share-based compensation are as follows:

(In Thousands)
Years Ended
December 31,

2014 2013
Nurse and allied healthcare staffing $ 113,230 % 104,64:
Locum tenens staffing 55,87¢ 58,90¢
Physician permanent placement services 18,95¢ 17,63(
Unallocated corporate overhead 36,99¢ 30,92%
Share-based compensation 7,157 6,12t
$ 232,22. % 218,23

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses Amortization expense increased 17% to $7.6onilfor 2014 from $6.5 million for 2013,
attributable to additional amortization expensated to the intangibles assets resulting from thi#&\8ise acquisition in November 2013.
Depreciation expense increased 20% to $8.4 miftior2014 from $7.0 million for 2013 , primarily atiutable to fixed assets acquired as part
of the ShiftWise acquisition and an increase irchased and developed hardware and software.

Interest Expense, Net, and Other Interest expense, net, and other, was $9.2amiftbr 2014 as compared to $9.7 million for 2013 .
Interest expense for the year ended December 34, id8luded a $3.1 million write-off of unamortizedferred financing fees and original
issue discount in connection with the refinancihgur credit facilities. Excluding the impact offirancing, the lower interest expense for the
year endedDecember 31, 2014 as compared to 2013 was dugvey Bverage debt outstanding balances and lowenesttrates.

Income Tax Expense We recorded an income tax expense of $25.4omifbr 2014 from continuing operations as compaoed
$22.9 million for 2013 , reflecting effective incentax rates of 43.4% and 41.366 these periods, respectively. The differencthaeffective
income tax rate was primarily attributable to acr@ase in non-deductible expenses in 2014. Se@a@ddiinformation in “Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data—Notes to Coasetid-inancial Statements—Note (7), Income Taxes.”

Comparison of Results for the Year Ended Decembgr 3013 to the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Revenue Revenue increased 6% to $1,011.8 million for 20b8f$954.0 million for 2012, as a result of highevenue in all three
of our reportable segments.

Nurse and allied healthcare staffing segment rezwémereased 4% to $682.0 million for 2013 from $@5®illion for 2012. The
increase was primarily attributable to a 2% inceciashe average number of healthcare professi@matgssignment, which was driven by
increased travel nurse volume and increased vohfretectronic medical record staffing engagementing 2013, with the remainder of the
increase due primarily to a combination of an iaseein bill rates, and mix shift to higher billeapecialties during the year ended
December 31, 2013.

Locum tenens staffing segment revenue increasedt@(®287.5 million for 2013 from $261.4 million f@012. The increase was
primarily attributable to an 8% increase in the emof days filled and a 2% increase in the revereralay filled resulting from bill rate
increases across most specialties during the ywdeDecember 31, 2013.

Physician permanent placement services segmeniuevacreased 9% to $42.4 million for 2013 from $38illion for 2012. The
increase was primarily due to the increase inlb#active searches and placements during theeywhed December 31, 2013.
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Gross Profit.  Gross profit increased 10% to $297.3 million2613 from $270.4 million for 2012, representingsgs margins of
29.4% and 28.3%, respectively. The increase inal@#ed gross margin was primarily due to an iaseein gross margin in all three of our
reportable segments. The nurse and allied headitataffing segment increase was primarily due vorible insurance claims experience, the
locum tenens staffing segment increase was priynduié to higher bill to pay spreads and the phgsigiermanent placement services
segment increase was primarily due to an increasecruiter productivity during the year ended Drber 31, 2013. Gross margin rate by
reportable segment for 2013 and 2012 was 27.4% 26156, respectively, for nurse and allied healtactaffing, 29.1% and 27.9%,
respectively, for locum tenens staffing, and 62at8d 62.3%, respectively, for physician permanestgient services.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses SG&A expenses were $218.2 million, represen®ihg% of revenue, for 2013, as
compared to $202.9 million, representing 21.3%ewEnue, for 2012. The increase in SG&A expensesiwagprimarily to increased
employee headcount, sales commissions and other redated to supporting growth in the businesingu2013 and a $2.0 million refund
received from the EDD in 2012 in connection witk 8ettlement of a prior period assessment. Theaserwas partially offset by a $3.0
million gain on the holdback settlement in connativith the NFI acquisition during the year endest&mber 31, 2013. For more
information on the holdback settlement, see “IterRiBancial Statements and Supplementary Data—Not€snsolidated Financial
Statements—Note (10)(b), Treasury Sto&G&A expenses broken down among the reportable setgmunallocated corporate overhead
share-based compensation are as follows:

(In Thousands)
Years Ended
December 31,

2013 2012
Nurse and allied healthcare staffing $ 104,64: $ 97,58¢
Locum tenens staffing 58,90¢ 51,20:
Physician permanent placement services 17,63( 16,22:
Unallocated corporate overhead 30,927 31,674
Share-based compensation 6,12 6,221
$ 218,230 % 202,90«

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses Amortization expense decreased 3% to $6.5anillor 2013 from $6.7 million for 2012,
with the decrease primarily attributable to havingre intangible assets fully amortized during tearyended December 31, 2013.
Depreciation expense decreased 7% to $7.0 milbo2®13 from $7.5 million for 2012, with the decsegrimarily attributable to having
more fixed assets fully depreciated for the yeaeeinDecember 31, 2013.

Interest Expense, Net, and Other Interest expense, net, and other, was $9.7amiftr 2013 as compared to $26.0 million for 2012,
The decrease was primarily attributable to a $9lBom loss on debt extinguishment recorded dutimg year ended December 31, 2012 and a
lower average debt outstanding balance and lovterdst rate for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Income Tax Expense We recorded an income tax expense of $22.9omifbr 2013 from continuing operations as compaoed
$11.0 million for 2012, reflecting effective incornte rates of 41.0% and 40.3% for these periodpeetively. The difference in the effective
income tax rate was primarily attributable to thkationship of pre-tax income to permanent diffeem See additional information itt€m 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data—Not€®hsolidated Financial Statements—Note (7), Inediaxes.”

Income From Discontinued Operations We recorded no income from discontinued openatfor the year ended December 31,
2013. For the year ended December 31, 2012, inéammediscontinued operations of $0.8 million wasngwised of a $1.2 million gain on
sale, net of tax, and a $0.4 million loss from diginued operations, net of tax. See additionarmftion in “Item 8. Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data—Notes to Consolidated FiabStatements—Note (2), Discontinued Operations.”
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

In summary, our cash flows were:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 27,67¢ 3 60,16¢ $ 58,38(
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (28,229 (49,199 1,57¢
Net cash used in financing activities (2,099 (1,019 (58,169

Historically, our primary liquidity requirementsvebeen for acquisitions, working capital requireiseand debt service under our
credit facilities. We have funded these requiremémtough internally generated cash flow and fumfsowed under our credit facilities. At
December 31, 2014 , $162.4 million was outstandimder the New Credit Facilities (as defined belaith $197.6 million of available
credit under our $225 million secured revolvingditéacility (the “Revolver”).

We believe that cash generated from operationsgaithable borrowings under our Revolver will befmi¢nt to fund our operations fi
the next 12 months and beyond. We intend to fingrotential future acquisitions with cash provideahf operations, borrowings under our
Revolver, bank loans, debt or equity offeringssame combination of the foregoing. The followingalission provides further details of our
liquidity and capital resources.

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operations for 2014 was $&iillfon , compared to $60.2 million for 2013 and8$% million for 2012 . The
decrease in net cash provided by operating aets/foir 2014 from 2013 was primarily attributableatoincrease in accounts receivable and
accounts receivable for subcontractors due to enre@se in both revenues and our Days Sales OuiistpfiSO”). Our DSO was 61 days
and 55 days at December 31, 2014 and 2013 , résggciThe increase in DSO is attributable to saVéctors including slower than normal
payment by a few larger customers, extended bifiragesses for clients utilizing third-party VME&ologies, and unique billing
requirements for several staffing projects, whiekag payments. However, we have not noted anyidedtion of the credit quality of our
overall client base. The decrease in cash provigeaberations was also due to an increase in ¢cesdrcash, cash equivalents and investn
attributable to cash payments made to our captiserance entity, which are restricted for use leyctptive for future claim payments and, to
a lesser extent, its working capital needs.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for 2014 2683 were $28.2 million and $49.2 million , respesly, as compared to $1.6 million
net cash provided by investing activities for 20L2apital expenditures were $19.1 million , $9.0ion and $5.5 million for the years ended
December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectivélg.ificrease in capital expenditures during 2014tevasipport the growth in the business
and for investments made in conjunction with manag initiatives to update our front and back @finformation technology platforms.
We intend to continue our investment in these mftion technology initiatives, including investmeof $10.0 to $15.0 million in each of 1
next two years, to standardize our staffing operation PeopleSoft and Salesforce. We believe ihesstments will further differentiate our
ability to deliver innovative workforce solutions addition to delivering improved operating effitgy. The increase in capital expenditures
was partially offset by the decrease in restrictesh, cash equivalents and investments balanckimgsuom the reduction of standby letters
of credit.

We paid cash of $14.5 million and $39.5 millioncimnjunction with our acquisitions of Avantas andf8hise in 2014 and 2013,
respectively, as compared to $0 paid for acquirsitio 2012.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities during tharyended December 31, 2014 was $2.1 million , pilynattributable to paying down
our Term Loan (as defined below) offset by borraygiminder the Revolver. Net cash used in financitigities during the year ended
December 31, 2013 was $1.0 million . Net cash ursdidancing activities during the year ended DebenB1, 2012 was $58.2 million ,
primarily due to paying off debt.
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Credit Agreement

On April 18, 2014, we entered into a Credit Agreatr{éhe “Credit Agreement”) with several lendergtovide for two credit facilities
(the “New Credit Facilities”) to replace our priaredit facilities, including (A) the $225 millioneRolver that includes a $40 million sublimit
for the issuance of letters of credit and a $20ionilsublimit for swingline loans and (B) a $150llilnn secured term loan credit facility (the
“Term Loan”). For more detail regarding the ternishe Credit Agreement, please see “ltem 8. Firdrfgfatements and Supplementary
Data—Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements-eRjt Notes Payable and Related Credit Agreement.”

Borrowings Under Credit Facilities

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , the total off@arm Loan outstanding (including both the cur@md long-term portions), net of
discount, was $144.4 million and $148.7 milliorspectively. There was $18.0 million and $10.0 milloutstanding under the Revolver at
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Letters of Credit
At December 31, 2014 , we maintained outstandiagdiiy letters of credit totaling $15.0 million adlateral in relation to our
professional liability insurance agreements, wasl@mpensation insurance agreements, and a carpdfae lease agreement. Of the $15.0

million outstanding letters of credit, we have atdralized $5.6 million in cash, cash equivalent$ iavestments and the remaining amount
has been collateralized by the Revolver. Outstansliandby letters of credit at December 31, 2018dd $27.7 million.

Off-Balance Sheet and Other Financing Arrangements
At December 31, 2014 and 2013, we did not haveadidlgalance sheet arrangement that has or is reagplikely to have a current or

future effect on our financial condition, changedinancial condition, revenues or expenses, regiloperations, liquidity, capital
expenditures, or capital resources that is matariaivestors.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual gdgions as of December 31, 2014 (in thousands):

Fiscal Year
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter Total
Notes payable (1) $ 10,18 $ 10,047 $ 9,90« $ 9,76z $ 115,08 $ — $ 154,98¢
Operating lease obligations (2) 13,21¢ 13,78¢ 12,27 11,66: 11,78 92,94¢ 155,66t
Cash holdback (3) — 82t — — — — 82t

Total contractual obligations $ 23,40¢ $ 2465¢ $ 22,178 $ 2142: $ 126,87( $ 92,94¢ $ 311,48

(1) Amounts represent contractual amounts duerthéelerm Loan, including interest calculated aterin effect at December 31,
2014 .

(2)  Amounts represent minimum contractual amouwith) initial or remaining lease terms in exces®oé year. We have assumed no
escalations in rent or changes in variable expeoites than as stipulated in lease contracts. Ti@muats also include rent payments
relating to the new lease agreement entered iralg@015 as described immediately below.

(3) Amounts represent the long-term portion of¢hseh holdback payable in cash in connection wighAvantas acquisition, subject to
our claims against the holdback under the acqoisiigreement.

On January 26, 2015, we entered into a ten-yeaatpg lease agreement for office space in Dallagas that will replace our current
operating lease agreement for our Irving, Texasedf which expires in August 2015. Base rent payymender the new lease agreement will
begin in September 2015 and the total estimateel twag payments will be approximately $24.0 millmrer the life of the lease and have
been included in the table immediately above.
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In addition to the above disclosed contractualgailons, the unrecognized income tax benefitsutlinly interest and penalties, was
$28.7 million at December 31, 2014 . See additiomfarmation in “ltem 8. Financial Statements angflementary Data—Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements—Note (7), IncOiepees.”

Potential Fluctuations in Quarterly Results and Sesonality

Due to the regional and seasonal fluctuationsertibspital patient census and staffing needs ohospital and healthcare facility and
other clients and due to the seasonal preferecaiestinations of our healthcare professionalenae, earnings and the number of
healthcare professionals on assignment are subjecbderate seasonal fluctuations.

Inflation

Although inflation has remained relatively stableidg the last several years, the rate of inflatiohealthcareelated services continu
to exceed the rate experienced by the economywd®iz. Our contracts typically provide for an annnarease in the fees paid to us by our
clients based on increases in various inflationcesi which provides us the opportunity to pasgélation costs to our clients.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standardsf8dssued new accounting guidance related to reveseognition. This new
standard will replace all current U.S. GAAP guidaion this topic and eliminate all industry-specifiagdance. The new revenue recognition
standard provides a unified model to determine war@hhow revenue is recognized. The core prindgpleat a company should recognize
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goodsorices to customers in an amount that reflbetstnsideration for which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goodsrvices. This guidance will be effective forgginning January 1, 2017 and can be
applied either retrospectively to each period presor as a cumulative-effect adjustment as ofittte of adoption. We are evaluating the
impact of adopting this new accounting standarédunconsolidated financial statements. We haveyabselected a transition method nor
have we determined the effect of the standard omogoing financial reporting.

There have been no other new accounting pronountsrissued but not yet adopted that are expectethterially affect our
consolidated financial condition or results of gigms.

ltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adwechanges in market rates and prices, such agshi@tes, foreign currency exchange
rates and commodity prices.

During 2014, our primary exposure to market rislswaerest rate risk associated with our variaierest debt instruments. A 100
basis point increase in interest rates on our bkriete debt would not have resulted in a mateffalct on our consolidated financial
statements for 2014.

We conduct a de minimus amount of internationakafp@ns. Accordingly, we believe that our foreigirrency risk is immaterial.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
AMN Healthcare Services, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of AMN Healthcare Services, Inc. andidigrges (the Company) as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related ddagad statements of comprehensive income, stodkhslequity, and cash flows for ea
of the years in the three-year period ended Decethe2014 . These consolidated financial statemard the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to egpran opinion on these consolidated financiastants based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet dndbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on glasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesiused and significant estimates made by marnageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegrferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of AMN
Healthcare Services, Inc. and subsidiaries as oééer 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results of tipeirations and their cash flows for each
of the years in the three-year period ended DeceBthe2014 , in conformity with U.S. generally aptad accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), AMN Healthcare
Services, Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal contr@rdfinancial reporting as of December 31, 2014sdd on criteria establishedlinternal
Control—Integrated Framework (2018sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission (COSO), and our
report dated February 24, 2015 expressed an ufigdadpinion on the effectiveness of the Compaimyternal control over financial

reporting.

/sl KPMG LLP

San Diego, California
February 24, 2015
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AMN HEALTHCARE SERVICES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except par value)

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 13,07 $ 15,58(
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $4,516 %5118 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respegctivel 186,27: 147,47
Accounts receivable, subcontractor 28,44 18,27:
Deferred income taxes, net 27,33( 24,93¢
Prepaid and other current assets 27,55( 26,63:
Total current assets 282,67( 232,89
Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments 19,567 23,11t
Fixed assets, net of accumulated depreciation 8% and $63,031 at December 31, 2014 and 204j3ectvely 32,88( 21,15¢
Other assets 39,89 32,27¢
Goodwill 154,38 144,64.
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortizaif$41,963 and $42,439 at December 31, 2014 an8, 284pectively 152,51 150,19
Total assets $ 681,91t $ 604,28t

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 78,99: $ 71,31«
Accrued compensation and benefits 67,99¢ 55,94¢
Revolving credit facility 18,00( 10,00(
Current portion of notes payable 7,50C —
Deferred revenue 3,177 1,37:¢
Other current liabilities 2,63( 4,45¢
Total current liabilities 178,29! 143,09(

Notes payable, net of discount 136,87" 148,67
Deferred income taxes, net 32,49: 17,76¢
Other long-term liabilities 77,674 77,02(
Total liabilities 425,33! 386,54t

Commitments and contingencies and subsequent events

Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 10,000 sharémenéd; none issued and outstanding at Decembex03d¥ and 2013 _ _
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 200,000 shares azdldg 46,639 and 46,011 shares issued and ouistaat

December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively 46€ 46C
Additional paid-in capital 434,52¢ 429,05!
Accumulated deficit (178,059 (211,279
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (35€) (49¢)
Total stockholders’ equity 256,58: 217,74:
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 681,91¢ $ 604,28

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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AMN HEALTHCARE SERVICES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Revenue $ 1,036,02° $ 1,011,811 $ 953,95:
Cost of revenue 719,91( 714,53t 683,55¢
Gross profit 316,11 297,28( 270,39
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative 232,22: 218,23: 202,90
Depreciation and amortization 15,99: 13,54¢ 14,15
Total operating expenses 248,21 231,77¢ 217,05!
Income from operations 67,90 65,50 53,34
Interest expense, net (including loss on debt guishment of $3,113,
$434, and $9,815 for the years ended Decemberdd4, 2013, and 201
respectively), and other 9,23i 9,66¢ 26,01¢
Income from continuing operations before incomes$ax 58,66¢ 55,831 27,32
Income tax expense 25,44¢ 22,90¢ 11,01(
Income from continuing operations 33,21, 32,93 16,31
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax — — 823
Net income $ 33217 % 32,93. % 17,13¢
Other comprehensive income (loss) - foreign curydremslation 14z (55 (70)
Comprehensive income $ 33,35¢ $ 32,87¢ $ 17,06¢
Basic income per common share from:
Continuing operations $ 071 $ 0.7z $ 0.3€
Discontinued operations — — 0.0z
Net income $ 071 $ 0.7z % 0.3¢
Diluted income per common share from:
Continuing operations $ 0.6 $ 0.6 $ 0.3t
Discontinued operations — — 0.0z
Net income $ 0.6¢ $ 0.6¢ $ 0.37
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic 46,50¢ 45,96 41,63:
Diluted 48,08¢ 47,787 46,70¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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AMN HEALTHCARE SERVICES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(in thousands)

Years Ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012

Accumulated

Common Stock Additional Treasury Stock
Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive
Shares Amount Capital Shares Amount Deficit Gain (Loss) Total

Balance, December 31, 20 40,45: 405 $ 394,95 — 3 — 3 (259,33) $ (379 $ 135,65!
Equity awards vested and issued
and exercised, net of shares
withheld for payroll taxes 48¢€ 5 (550 — — — — (545)
Preferred Stock converted to
common stock 4,751 47 23,99: — — — — 24,03¢
Preferred Stock retirement — — 37 — — — — 37
Income tax shortfall from equity
awards vested and exercised — — (369 — — — — (369)
Share-based compensation — — 6,22¢ — — — — 6,22¢
Comprehensive income (loss) — — — — 17,13¢ (70) 17,06¢

Balance, December 31, 20 45,69: 457 $ 424,29 — % — 3 (242,19) $ (443 $ 182,11:
Settlement of acquisition share
holdback — — — — (3,046 — — (3,046
Treasury stock retirement (204) @) (1,03) — 3,04¢ (2,019 — —
Equity awards vested and issuec
and exercised, net of shares
withheld for payroll taxes 524 5 (1,499 — — — — (1,499
Income tax benefit from equity
awards vested and exercised — — 1,167 — — — — 1,167
Share-based compensation — — 6,12¢ — — — — 6,12¢
Comprehensive income (loss) — — — — — 32,93¢ (55) 32,87¢
Balance, December 31, 2013 46,01: 46C $ 429,05 — % — ¢ (211,27) $ (49¢) $ 217,74
Equity awards vested and issued
and exercised, net of shares
withheld for payroll taxes 62¢ 6 (2,667 — — — — (2,65%)
Income tax benefit from equity
awards vested and exercised — — 97¢ — — — — 97¢
Share-based compensation — — 7,157 — — — — 7,15
Comprehensive income — — — — — 33,217 14z 33,35¢
Balance, December 31, 2014 46,63¢ 46€ $ 434,52 — % — % (178,059 $ (35€) $ 256,58:

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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AMN HEALTHCARE SERVICES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 33217 % 3293 % 17,13¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 15,99: 13,54¢ 14,15
Non-cash interest expense and other 1,39 1,33¢ 2,921
Increase in allowances for doubtful accounts atessaedits 4,397 4,62¢ 6,78¢
Provision for deferred income taxes 11,77¢ 3,031 6,951
Share-based compensation 7,157 6,12¢ 6,22¢
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation (1,819 (1,529 (44)
Holdback settlement in equity from prior acquigitio _ (3,046 —
Gain on sale of discontinued operations — — (1,187)
Loss on disposal or sale of fixed assets 60 14 32
Loss on debt extinguishment 3,11¢ 434 9,81¢
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effecmfacquisition and divestiture:
Accounts receivable (41,959 (8,649 (2,647
Accounts receivable, subcontractor (10,177) 19¢ 4,03(
Income taxes receivable 76€ (1,572 3,03¢
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 13 3,22¢ (8,689
Other assets (26¢€) (11,865 (1,537
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 6,12F 6,244 (680)
Accrued compensation and benefits 11,51¢ 6,367 5,79¢
Other liabilities (4,48%) 13,12¢ (3,029)
Deferred Revenue (114) (90) (692)
Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investmafdade (9,007) (4,309 —
Net cash provided by operating activities 27,67¢ 60,16¢ 58,38(
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase and development of fixed assets (19,139 (9,047) (5,472)
Change in restricted cash, cash equivalents amsiments balance 12,55( 47 (617)
Equity method investment (5,000 — —
Payments to fund deferred compensation plan (2,179 (1,29¢) (1,389
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash received (14,470 (39,500 —
Proceeds from sales of assets held for sale — 60C 9,05(
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (28,22% (49,199 1,57¢
Cash flows from financing activities:
Capital lease repayments (529 (681) (650)
Payments on term loan (155,24)) (10,000 (246,88()
Proceeds from term loan 150,00( — 198,00(
Payments on revolving credit facility (39,500 (16,000 (3,000
Proceeds from revolving credit facility 47,50( 26,00( —
Prepayment penalty associated with the prior cfaditities — — (2,200
Payment of financing costs (3,48¢) (3649) (3,93¢)
Proceeds from exercise of equity awards 1,792 1,177 53C
Cash paid for shares withheld for taxes (4,448 (2,670 (1,07%)
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation 1,81¢ 1,521 44
Net cash used in financing activities (2,099 (1,017 (58,169
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Net change in cash and cash equivalents
(2,507 9,89¢
,89¢ 1,71¢
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Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest (net of $123, $63 and $dnialized in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectivelg)

Cash paid for income taxes
Acquisitions:
Fair value of tangible assets acquired in Bitipns, net of cash received
Goodwill
Intangible assets
Liabilities and deferred revenue assumed
Holdback provision
Earn-out liabilities

Net cash paid for acquisitions

Supplemental disclosures of non-cash investingfiaadcing activities:

Purchase of fixed assets recorded in accounts [gagall accrued expenses

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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15,58( 5,681 3,96:
$ 13,07: 15,58 5,681
4,59¢ 7,40¢ 13,69¢
$ 17,88 18,86 1,86(
$ 1,631 9,89¢ —
9,75( 21,31¢ —
9,96( 19,79( —
(3,82) (11,507 —
(1,650) = —
(1,400) — —
$ 14,47( 39,50( —
$ 4,61¢ 3,721 282




AMN HEALTHCARE SERVICES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) General

AMN Healthcare Services, Inc. was incorporated @levare on November 10, 1997. AMN Healthcare Sesyitnc. and its subsidiar
(collectively, the “Company”) provide healthcarenkimrce solutions and staffing services at acutd sub-acute care hospitals and other
healthcare facilities throughout the United States.

(b) Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiectade the accounts of AMN Healthcare Services, &md its wholly-owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balaneesl transactions have been eliminated in congsmita

(c) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of America
requires management to make a number of estimateassumptions relating to the reporting of assetkliabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date@®financial statements and the reported amounevehue and expenses during the reporting
periods. On an ongoing basis, the Company evalitatestimates, including those related to asspaimment, accruals for self-insurance and
compensation and related benefits, accounts rdaeiveontingencies and litigation, and income taXé® Company bases these estimates on
the information that is currently available andvamious other assumptions that it believes areorestsle under the circumstances. Actual
results could differ from those estimates unddiediint assumptions or conditions.

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investmanith an original maturity of three months or lés$e cash equivalents. Cash and
cash equivalents include currency on hand, depatitsfinancial institutions and highly liquid inggnents.

(e) Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investisen

Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investmeintaily represent the cash and U.S. Treasury #@sipn deposit with financial
institutions that serve as collateral for the Compsoutstanding letters of credit and captive nasige subsidiary claim payments. The
original maturity terms for the U.S. Treasury sé@s were between 3 -months and 12 -months. Sée (49, “Fair Value Measurement” and
Note (8),“Notes Payable and Credit Agreement” for additian&rmation.

(f) Fixed Assets

The Company records furniture, equipment, leaseingiiiovements and internal-use software at costdesumulated amortization and
depreciation. The Company records equipment acdjuineler capital leases at the present value dithee minimum lease payments. The
Company capitalizes major additions and improves)eatd expenses maintenance and repairs whenadcdine Company calculates
depreciation on furniture, equipment and softwaiaegithe straight-line method based on the estitnageful lives of the related assethree
to seven years). The Company amortizes leasehgibiraments and equipment obtained under capitséteaver the shorter of the term of
the lease or their estimated useful lives. The Gamgpncludes amortization of equipment obtainedenrmépital leases with depreciation
expense in the accompanying consolidated finastiéments.

The Company capitalizes costs it incurs to devéltgrnal-use software during the application depgient stage. Application
development stage costs generally include costedsd with internal-use software configuratiooding, installation and testing. The
Company also capitalizes costs of significant uggsaand enhancements that result in additionatibmadity, whereas it expenses as incui
costs for maintenance and minor upgrades and eahmamts. The Company amortizes capitalized costg tke straight-line method over
three to seven years once the software is readisfortended use.
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The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairtwémenever events or changes in circumstancesatedtbat the carrying amount
of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverabiiiissets to be held and used is measured by aacmmp of the carrying amount of an a
group to the future undiscounted net cash flowsdhaexpected to be generated by the asset df@ayzh asset group is considered to be
impaired, the impairment to be recognized is meabsby the amount by which the carrying amount efdbset group exceeds the fair valt
the asset group. The Company reports assets tisfpesed of at the lower of the carrying amountair ¥alue less costs to sell.

(g) Goodwill

The Company records as goodwill the portion ofghiechase price that exceeds the fair value of sexta of entities acquired. The
Company evaluates goodwill annually for impairmainthe reporting unit level and whenever circumstaroccur indicating that goodwill
may be impaired. The Company may first assesstqtiaé factors to determine whether it is moreljjikthan not that the fair value of a
reporting unit is less than its carrying amountaffer assessing the totality of events and cistances, the Company determines that it is
more likely than not that the fair value of theagjmg unit is greater than its carrying amoung ¢juantitative impairment test is unnecessary.
The performance of the quantitative impairment iteablves a two-step process. The first step oftélse involves comparing the fair value of
the Company’s reporting units with the reportingt'ancarrying amount, including goodwill. The Compaygnerally determines the fair val
of its reporting units using a combination of theame approach (using discounted future cash flawd)the market valuation approach. If
the carrying amount of the Company’s reportingaipitceeds the reporting unit’s fair value, the Canypperforms the second step of the test
to determine the amount of impairment loss. Thesédstep of the test involves comparing the impladvalue of the Company’s reporting
unit’s goodwill with the carrying amount of thatagwill. The amount by which the carrying value loé tgoodwill exceeds its implied fair
value, if any, is recognized as an impairment loss.

(h) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of identifiable intangiassets acquired through acquisitions. Ident#iaitangible assets include tradenames
and trademarks, customer relationships, non-congmgteements, staffing databases, acquired technalugjonline courses. The Company
amortizes intangible assets, other than tradename$rademarks with an indefinite life, using thaight-line method over their useful lives.
The Company amortizes non-compete covenants usingttaight-line method over the lives of the edadgreements. The Company reviews
for impairment intangible assets with estimablefulderes whenever events or changes in circums&amaedicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable.

The Company does not amortize indefinite-lived érzaimes and trademarks and instead reviews theimpairment annually The
Company may first perform a qualitative assessrteedéetermine whether it is more likely than notttha indefinite-lived intangible asset is
impaired. If, after assessing the totality of egeantd circumstances, the Company determines tisamiore likely than not that the indefinite-
lived intangible asset is not impaired, no quatitieafair value measurement is necessary. If a tijadine fair value measurement calculation
is required for the indefinite-lived intangible ats the Company compares the fair value of thegamyis indefinite-lived intangibles with
their carrying amount. If the carrying amount exisethe fair value, the Company records the excess @dmpairment loss.

(i) Insurance Reserves

The Company maintains an accrual for professiagahility that is included in accounts payable andraed expenses and other long-
term liabilities in the consolidated balance sheBte expense is included in the selling, generdladministrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income Cldmpany determines the adequacy of this accrualbjuating its historical experien
and trends, loss reserves established by the Coriggasurance carriers, management and third-pedtyiinistrators, and its independent
actuarial studies. The Company obtains actuan@iss on a semi-annual basis that use the Compangual claims data and industry data to
assist the Company in determining the adequad oéserves each year. For periods between thar&dtstudies, the Company records its
accruals based on loss rates provided in the mosht actuarial study and management's reviewssfhgstory. In November 2012, the
Company established a captive insurance subsididrigh provides coverage, on an occurrence bagigrbfessional liability within its nur:
and allied healthcare staffing segment. Liabilitredude provisions for estimated losses incurretinot yet reported (“IBNR”), as well as
provisions for known claims. IBNR reserve estimate®lve the use of assumptions and are primaglyelol upon historical loss experience,
industry data and other actuarial assumptions.ddrapany maintains excess insurance coverage thmaghmmercial carrier for losses
above the per occurrence retention.

The Company maintains an accrual for workers corsgtion, which is included in accrued compensatimhtzenefits and other long-
term liabilities in the consolidated balance sheBte Company determines the adequacy of this atbyuevaluating its historical experience
and trends, loss reserves established by the Corisgasurance carriers and third-party administrsitand its independent actuarial studies.
The Company obtains actuarial studies on a semiarasis that use the
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Company’s payroll and historical claims data, a#i a®industry data, to determine the appropriaserve for both reported claims and IBNR
claims for each policy year. For periods betweenattuarial studies, the Company records its alschased on loss rates provided in the
most recent actuarial study.

()) Revenue Recognition

Revenue consists of fees earned from the permanentemporary placement of healthcare professioRa&genue is recognized when
earned and realizable. The Company has enteredéntain contracts with healthcare organizationgsréwide managed services programs.
Under these contract arrangements, the Companyitasesalthcare professionals along with thosénélfparty subcontractors to fulfill clie
orders. If the Company uses subcontractors, itrdscevenue net of related subcontractors expdigeresulting net revenue represents the
administrative fee the Company charges for its vemdanagement services. The Company is liablegatibcontractor after it receives
payment from the client. The Company includes pbsato subcontractors in accounts payable and ed@xpenses in the consolidated
balance sheets.

(k) Accounts Receivable

The Company records accounts receivable at theded@mount. Accounts receivable are muerest bearing. The Company maint:
an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimatediitiosses resulting from collection risk, inclagithe inability of customers to make
required payments under contractual agreementsalltveance for doubtful accounts is reported asdaiction of accounts receivable in the
consolidated balance sheets. The Company deterthieeslequacy of this allowance by evaluating hisabdelinquency and write-off
trends, the financial condition and credit risk dngtory of each customer, historical payment teeasl well as current economic conditions
and the impact of such conditions on the custontigngdity and overall financial condition. The Comany also maintains a sales allowanc
reserve for potential credits issued to custonére. Company determines the amount of the resersedban historical credits issued.

(I) Concentration of Credit Risk

The majority of the Company’s business activityith hospitals located throughout the United Staedit is extended based on the
evaluation of each entity’s financial conditiondagollateral is generally not required. Credit Esbave been within management’s
expectations. Other than one healthcare systenchvdamprised approximately 108bthe consolidated revenue of the Company fofigoal
year ended December 31, 2014, no client healtrsyamtem exceedel0% of consolidated revenue for the years ende@iiber 31, 2014 ,
2013 or 2012 . As of each of December 31, 2014281@ , accounts receivable from the Company’s it dlients represented
approximately 12% of the net accounts receivablare®, excluding amounts due to subcontractors.

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents and testigash, cash equivalents and investments accarngdso financial instruments
that are exposed to concentration of credit riste Tompany maintains its cash balances with highicquality and federally insured
institutions. Cash balances may be invested imafederally insured money market account. As ofddeloer 31, 2014 and 2013, there were
$19,567 and $23,115 , respectively, of restriceesh¢cash equivalents and investments primarilgsted in a non-federally insured U.S.
Treasury security account.

(m) Income Taxes

The Company records income taxes using the asddiadnility method. Deferred tax assets and lidieidi are recognized for the future
tax consequences attributable to differences bettheefinancial statement carrying amounts of exgsassets and liabilities and their
respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets anditiebiare measured using enacted tax rates expexggpply to taxable income in the years in
which those temporary differences are expectea taebovered or settled. The effect on deferrecdssets and liabilities of a change in tax
rates is recognized in the period the changesraeted. In assessing the realizability of defeteadassets, the Company considers whether it
is more likely than not that some portion or altlodé deferred tax assets will not be realized. Ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is
dependent upon the generation of future taxablenmecduring the periods in which those temporariedihces become deductible. The
Company considers the scheduled reversal of deftaseliabilities (including the impact of avail&btarryback and carryforward periods),
projected future taxable income, and tax-planningtsgies in making this assessment. The Companagnézes the effect of income tax
positions only if it is more likely than not thatah positions will be sustained. Recognized inctemepositions are measured at the largest
amount that is greater than 50% likely of beindized. Changes in recognition or measurement dlected in the period in which the char
in judgment occurs. The Company records interegtogmalties related to unrecognized tax benefilsdome tax expense.
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(n) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of the Company’s cash equisland restricted cash equivalents approximaierémpective fair values due to
the short-term nature and liquidity of these finahimstruments. The carrying amount of the Companyptes payable approximates its fair
value as the Company refinanced its credit faediin 2014 and the instrument’s interest ratevaniable (significant other observable inputs
- level 2). See Note (8), “Notes Payable and Cr&dieement,” for additional information. The famlue of the long-term portion of the
Company’s insurance accruals cannot be estimatttegSompany cannot reasonably determine the timfifigture payments.

(o) Share-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for its share-based emplayapensation plans by expensing the estimated &hirevof share-based awards on
a straight-line basis over the requisite employreise period, which is the vesting period. Retdcstock units (“RSUs”) granted under the
Equity Plan (as defined in Note (11), “Share-BaSedpensation”) typically vest at the end of a thsgsar vesting period, however, 33% of
the awards may vest on the 13th month anniverdaheayrant date, and 34% on the second annivecgahe grant date, if certain
performance targets are met. Share-based compmmsatt of RSUs is measured by the market valdleeo€ompany’s common stock on the
date of grant. Performance restricted stock uMRREUsS”) granted under the Equity Plan typicallysist of 1) PRSUs that contain a market
condition with the ultimate realizable number of ¥ dependent on relative and absolute total sbhlatehreturn over a three -year period,
up to a maximum amount to be issued under the aefat@d5% of the original grant (“TSR PRSUSs"), ttagrfvalues of which are estimated
using the Montezarlo simulation valuation model and will not bguestied for the achievement, or lack thereof, ofggfagformance condition
and 2) PRSUs that contain a performance conditidth, the ultimate realizable number of PRSUs depahdn the adjusted EBITDA margin
performance of the Company during a certain anpedbrmance period, with a range of 0% to 17&%he target amount granted to be is:
under the award. Share-based compensation cdsBIGIDA margin PRSUs is measured by the market vafube Company’s common
stock on the date of grant, and will be adjustecegiimated achievement of the performance comditiStock options and stock appreciation
rights granted are measured on the date of gramg tise BlackScholes valuation model, which includes assumptiueh as expected terrr
the award, stock price volatility, dividend ratedaisk free interest rate. The Company also estémtite forfeiture rate and records share-
based compensation expense only for those awaatiarnh expected to vest.

(p) Net Income per Common Share

Securities that are entitled to participate in dérids with common stock, such as the Company'&$S@AriConditional Convertible
Preferred Stock (the “Preferred Stock”), are com®d to be participating securities and the twesclaethod is used for purposes of
calculating basic net income per share. Undentloectass method, a portion of net income is alloc&egiarticipating securities and excluc
from the calculation of basic net income per comrsloare. On December 21, 2012, all outstanding sludrBreferred Stock were converted
into common stock; accordingly, for the two-classtinod calculation, the net income was allocated/deh common stock and Preferred
Stock on a proportionate basis using a systematia@asonable basis (based on number of days oditstd for purpose of calculating the
basic net income per share for the year ended De=e8i, 2012.

Share-based awards to purchase 298 , 308 and ¢h892s of common stock for the years ended Dece®ih@014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, were not included in the calculatnliluted net income per common share becauseftaet of these instruments was anti-
dilutive.
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The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted net income per common share foy#ars ended December 31,
2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively:

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Income from continuing operations $ 33217 $ 32,93. $ 16,311

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax — — 82%

Net income $ 33,217 $ 32,93: $ 17,13¢

Less: Allocation to participating securitiesrfra¢ontinuing operations — — (1,249

Allocation to participating securiti'Eem discontinued operations — — (65)

Total allocation to participating seities — — (1,319

Net income attributable to common stockholderssidba $ 33217 % 32,93 % 15,82:

Basic income per common share from:

Continuing operations $ 071 $ 0.7z $ 0.3¢€

Discontinued operations — — 0.0z

Net income $ 071 $ 07z $ 0.3¢
Diluted income per common share from:

Continuing operations $ 0.6 $ 0.6 $ 0.3t

Discontinued operations — — 0.0z

Net income $ 0.6 $ 0.6 $ 0.37

Weighted average common shares outstanding—basic 46,50¢ 45 96 41,63

Plus dilutive effect of potential common shares 1,582 1,82¢ 5,071

Weighted average common shares outstanding—diluted 48,08¢ 47,787 46,70¢

(q) Discontinued Operations

The results of operations of a disposal group faldale or disposed is presented as discontinpethtions when the underlying
operations and cash flows of the disposal groupbeil or have been, eliminated from the Compangigiouing operations and the Company
no longer has the ability to influence the opegtind/or financial policies of the disposal grotipis assessment is made at the time the
disposal group is classified as held for sale andfone-year period after the sale of the dispgisalp. See Note (2), “Discontinued
Operations,” for further information regarding tBempany’s discontinued operations.

(r) Segment Information

Historically, the Company had four reportable segtsienurse and allied healthcare staffing, locuneites staffing, physician permanent
placement services and home healthcare servicemdthe fourth quarter of 2011, the Company anwgedrthe expected divestiture of its
home healthcare services segment, which was cosdpiletlanuary 2012. As a result, the home heaktrsxavices segment was classified as
disposal group held for sale as of December 311 28d its results of operations have been claski{s discontinued operations for the year
ended December 31, 2012.

The Companys management relies on internal management reggatocesses that provide revenue and operatingnieday reportabl
segment for making financial decisions and allexptesources. Segment operating income represeune before income taxes plus
depreciation, amortization of intangible assetaystbased compensation expense, interest expegtyau(a other, and unallocated corporate
overhead. The Company’s management does not egatnahage or measure performance of segments assetjinformation; accordingly,
asset information by segment is not prepared afatied.
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The following table provides a reconciliation ofe@ue and segment operating income by reportablaeset to consolidated results ¢
was derived from each segment’s internal finariai@rmation as used for corporate management pagos

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Revenue
Nurse and allied healthcare staffing $ 695,20t $ 681,97¢ $ 653,82¢
Locum tenens staffing 296,16t 287,48 261,43:
Physician permanent placement services 44,65t 42,35:¢ 38,69
$ 1,036,02° $ 1,011,811 $ 953,95:
Segment operating income
Nurse and allied healthcare staffing $ 87,24t $ 82,45¢ $ 75,907
Locum tenens staffing 30,98¢ 24,71 21,61
Physician permanent placement services 9,81¢ 8,92¢ 7,86¢
128,04 116,09¢ 105,38t
Unallocated corporate overhead 36,99¢ 30,92: 31,674
Depreciation and amortization 15,99: 13,54¢ 14,15
Share-based compensation 7,157 6,12°¢ 6,221
Interest expense, net (including loss on debt guishment of $3,113, $434, and
$9,815 for the years ended December 31, 2014, @0d2012, respectively), and
other 9,237 9,66¢ 26,01¢
Income from continuing operations before incomestax $ 58,66t $ 55,837 $ 27,32:

(s) Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to ceofdine prior years’ consolidated financial statetseo conform to the current year
presentation. Specifically, 1) payments made ineo@ompany’s life insurance policies to assistimding the deferred compensation plan
were reclassified from cash flows from operatintivtees to cash flows from investing activities)&2) changes in book overdraft were
reclassified from cash flows from financing acfiedt to changes in accounts payable and accrueshsepevithin cash flows from operating
activities in the consolidated statement of castv$l for both the year ended December 31, 2013 @hd.2n addition, the Company
reclassified expected insurance recoveries unsi@rifessional liability and workers compensatiofigies in the consolidated balance sheet
for the year ended December 31, 2013 to conforthegaurrent year presentation. Professional lighéihd workers compensation liabilities
were previously presented net of insurance receseFor the fiscal year ended December 31, 20p&ated insurance recoveries are
presented on a gross basis, with the short-teraranse receivable portion included within “Prepaid other current assets” and the long-
term portion included within “Other assets” on tmmsolidated balance sheet.

(2) Discontinued Operations

In January 2012, the Company completed the s&dts bbme healthcare services segment and the dekadealts of operations have been
classified as discontinued operations for the pealed December 31, 2012.
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The following table represents the revenue anaddmeponents of discontinued operations, net of tax:

Year Ended December 31, 2012

Revenue $ 3,88t
Loss before income taxes $ (547
Income tax benefit 18:
Loss from discontinued operations $ (364)
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, beforermetaxes $ 3,82¢
Income tax expense (2,63¢)
Gain on sale of discontinued operations $ 1,187
Total income from discontinued operations $ 82¢

(3) Business Combinations and Equity Investment
Avantas Acquisition

On December 22, 2014, the Company completed itgisitiqn of Avantas, a leading provider of clinidabor management services,
including workforce consulting, data analytics,gictive modeling and SaaS-based scheduling techgolthe acquisition is intended to help
enable the Company to provide a level of workfqoedictability to clients that can be integratedhwis workforce and staffing solutions.
The acquisition is not considered a material bussirmmbination and, accordingly, pro forma infoliorais not provided. The acquisition w
funded through cash-on-hand and borrowings unde€ttmpany’s Revolver (as defined in Note (8), “IddBayable and Credit Agreement”).
The Company did not incur any material acquisitielated costs.

The Company accounted for the acquisition usingatipiisition method of accounting and, accordinglsecorded the tangible and
intangible assets acquired and liabilities assuatebeir estimated fair values as of the date efatquisition. The total purchase price of
$17,520 included $14,470 cash consideration pdi®3® cash holdback for potential claims indemdifiy the Avantas shareholders and
contingent earn-out with a fair value of $1,40theTacquisition agreement provides for a contingant-out payment of up to $8,500 to be
paid in 2016 based on future operating performafsef the date of this Annual Report on Form 10th& Company is still finalizing the
allocation of the purchase price. The provisiotehis pending finalization are primarily relatedas matters, which the Company expects to
complete during 2015.

The preliminary allocation of the purchase pricagsisted of $1,631 of fair value of tangible assetguired, $3,821 of liabilities and
deferred revenue assumed, $9,750 of goodwill an@689f identified intangible assets. The intangiassets include the fair value of
tradenames and trademarks, customer relationshipa@uired technologies. The weighted averageiulfef of the acquired intangible
assets subject to amortization is approximatelyelats. All goodwill recognized from this acquisitics deductible for tax purposes.

The results of operations of Avantas are includeithé nurse and allied healthcare staffing segimethe Company’s consolidated
financial statements since the date of acquisition.
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ShiftWise Acquisition

On November 20, 2013, the Company completed itaisitipn of ShiftWise, a leading national provid#rweb-based healthcare
workforce solutions, including its VMS technologtfliaed by hospitals and other healthcare systérhe.acquisition is not considered a
material business combination and, accordingly fpnma information is not provided. The acquisitiwas funded through cash-on-hand and
the Company did not incur any material acquisitielated costs.

The Company accounted for the acquisition usingatipiisition method of accounting and, accordinglsecorded the tangible and
intangible assets acquired and liabilities assuatedeir estimated fair values as of the date efatquisition. The purchase price of the
acquisition totaled $39,500 , of which $6,000 wepasited in escrow to satisfy any indemnificatitairas by the Company with respect to,
among other customary items, breaches of repragmgawarranties and covenants by ShiftWise arsd-@osing purchase price adjustme
The $6,000 deposited in escrow is scheduled tadtricsed to the selling shareholders in three yfedisving the closing date at $2,000 per
annum minus any indemnification claims. In NovemP@t4, $132 cash was released from escrow to thep@oy, and $1,568 cash was
released from escrow to the former Shiftwise shaldkrs, under the terms of the acquisition agre¢men

The allocation of the purchase price consistedd8909 of fair value of tangible assets acquired,, 502 of liabilities assumed
(including $2,701 of deferred tax liabilities), $313 of goodwill and $19,790 of identified intanigilassets. The intangible assets include the
fair value of tradenames and trademarks, custoet@tionships, non-compete agreements and acqichdologies. The weighted average
useful life of the acquired intangible assets stitiig amortization is approximately 8 years. Thisneo goodwill recognized as part of this
acquisition that is deductible for tax purposes.

The results of operations of ShiftWise are inclugethe nurse and allied healthcare staffing sednmethe Company’s consolidated
financial statements since the date of acquisition.

Pipeline Equity Investment

In March 2014, the Company entered into an agree(tien “Pipeline Agreement”) under which it madeiitial $2,000 investment in
Pipeline Health Holdings LLC (“Pipeline”), a telegoimacy and pharmacy technology solutions provitlee. Company’s ownership
percentage in Pipeline at March 31, 2014 was ajpmitely 9% . Under the Pipeline Agreement, the Camypcommitted to invest up to an
additional $3,000 contingent upon Pipeline reacling milestone commitments within a year. In Agnild September 2014, the Company
made the milestone investments of $1,000 and $2,68pectively, which together with the initialestment represents an ownership
percentage in Pipeline of approximately 18% asefdinber 31, 2014. The investment is accountedndenthe equity method of
accounting. The Company’s share of Pipeline’s tesslincluded within “Interest expense, net, atited' in the accompanying audited
consolidated statement of comprehensive incomthéoyear ended December 31, 2014.

(4) Fair Value Measurement

Fair value represents the price that would be veckior an asset or paid to transfer a liability éxit price) in the principal or most
advantageous market for the asset or liabilitynmederly transaction between market participantthe measurement date. When
determining fair value, the Company considers ttiecjpal or most advantageous market in which tben@any would conduct a transaction,
in addition to the assumptions that market pardiotp would use when pricing the related assetslpilities, including non-performance risk.

A threedevel hierarchy prioritizes the inputs to valuattechniques used to measure fair value and recairemntity to maximize the u
of observable inputs and minimize the use of unaladde inputs when measuring fair value. The thegels of the fair value hierarchy are as
follows:

Level 1—Quoted prices in active markets for identical &see liabilities.

Level 2—Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices sctusted prices for similar assets or liabilitiggoted prices in markets that
are not active; or other inputs that are observabbtan be corroborated by observable market datsubstantially the full term of the assets
or liabilities.

Level 3—Unobservable inputs that are supported by littlammarket activity and that are significant te fair value of the assets or
liabilities.

Assets and Liabilities Measured on a Recurring Basi
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The Company’s assets that are measured at faie wala recurring basis include restricted cashvatpits and investments.

In addition, with the recent acquisition of Avantise Company has an obligation to pay earn-ousidenation of up to $8,500 in cash,
to the former selling shareholders, if certain fatfinancial metrics are met by Avantas. The earnpayment is expected to be determined in
the second half of 2016. Expected cash flows ateraéned using the probability-weighted averagpadsible outcomes that would occur
should certain financial metrics be reached. Ther® market data available to use in valuing thatingent consideration, therefore, the
Company developed its own assumptions relatedetéutiure financial performance of Avantas to eveduhe fair value of this liability. As
such, the contingent consideration is classifietthiwiLevel 3.

In connection with estimating the fair value of ttentingent consideration, the Company estimatesvikighted probability of Avantas
earning each of the five specified tiered earnasnounts of $0 , $1,500 , $3,500 , $5,500 and $8,5@0ch are each tied to the financial
performance of Avantas during the year ending B&016. An increase or decrease in the probgloiliachievement of an earn-out tieill
result in an increase or decrease to the estinfiaitedalue of the contingent consideration. The @any will reassess the fair value each
reporting period and adjust the liability to itethfair value.

The following tables present information about thassets and liabilities and indicate the fair @dlierarchy of the valuation techniq
utilized to determine such fair value:

Fair Value Measurements as of December 31, 2014

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets

for Identical Significant Other Significant
Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)
U.S. Treasury securities $ 5291 $ 5291 $ —  $ —
Money market funds 33t 33t — —
Acquisition contingent consideration earn-out lidpi 1,40C — — 1,40(C
Total financial assets measured at fair value $ 7,02¢ $ 562¢ $ — % 1,40(

Fair Value Measurements as of December 31, 2013

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets

for Identical Significant Other Significant
Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)
U.S. Treasury securities $ 17,817 $ 17817 % — 3 —
Money market funds 35¢ 35¢ — —
Total financial assets measured at fair value $ 18,17¢ $ 18,17¢ $ — $ —

The Company'’s restricted cash equivalents and imargs typically consist of U.S. Treasury secwsia@d money market funds on
deposit with financial institutions that serve aflateral for the Company’s outstanding letterg@dit.

Assets Measured on a Non-Recurring Basis

The Company applies fair value techniques on areourring basis associated with valuing potentigdairment losses related to its
goodwill, indefinite-lived intangible assets, lotiged assets and equity method investment.

The Company evaluates goodwill at the reporting lewiel and indefinite-lived intangible assets aalhufor impairment and whenever
circumstances occur indicating that goodwill migatimpaired. The Company determines the fair vafuts reporting units based on a
combination of inputs including the market cap#ation of the Company as well as Level 3 inputhisagdiscounted cash flows, which are
not observable from the market, directly or indilecThe Company determined the fair value of itdéfinite-lived intangible assets using the
income approach (relief-from-royalty method) basad_evel 3 inputs.
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The Company performed its annual impairment tesdingach of October 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, atreardmed there was no
impairment of goodwill or its indefinite-lived imaibles. See Note (5), “Goodwill and Identifiabfgdngible Assets” for additional
information.

(5) Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Companyth®tbllowing acquired intangible assets:

As of December 31, 2014 As of December 31, 2013
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Intangible assets subject to amortization:

Staffing databases $ 3,02 $ (2,618 $ 40z $ 545( $ (4,449 $ 1,00¢
Customer relationships 77,30( (32,97) 44,32¢ 72,99( (29,367) 43,62:
Tradenames and trademarks 17,54( (5,436 12,10¢ 16,87 (6,209 10,66¢
Non-compete agreements 19C (72 11¢€ 1,66¢€ (1,489 182
Acquired technology 7,03( (86€) 6,164 6,20( (88€) 5,31¢
Online courses — — — 59 (59 —

$ 10508 $ (41,96) $ 63,117 $ 103,23 $ (42439 $ 60,797

Intangible assets not subject to amortization:
tradenames and trademarks $ 89,40( $ 89,40(

$ 152,51 $ 150,19°

Aggregate amortization expense for intangible asses $7,639 and $6,503 for the years ended Dece3ib2014 and 2013,
respectively. Based on the current amount of iritdeg subject to amortization, the estimated arpatitbn expense as of December 31, 2014
is as follows:

Amount

Year ending December 31, 2015 $ 8,20z
Year ending December 31, 2016 7,73¢
Year ending December 31, 2017 7,517
Year ending December 31, 2018 7,31t
Year ending December 31, 2019 6,911
Thereafter 25,43¢
$ 63,117

The following table summarizes the activity relatedhe carrying value of goodwill by reportablgsent:

Physician

Permanent

Nurse and Allied Locum Tenens Placement

Healthcare Staffing Staffing Services Total
Balance, January 1, 2013 $ 76,49 $ 14,50 $ 32,32¢  $ 123,32:
Goodwill acquired from ShiftWise acquisition 21,31¢ — — 21,31¢
Balance, December 31, 2013 97,81 14,50: 32,32¢ 144,64
Goodwill adjustment for ShiftWise acquisition (5) — — (5)
Goodwill acquired from Avantas acquisition 9,75( — — 9,75(
Balance, December 31, 2014 $ 107,55¢ $ 14,50 $ 32,32¢ $ 154,38°
Accumulated impairment loss as of December 31,

2013 and 2014 $ 154,44 $ 53,94( $ 6,555 $ 214,93¢
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(6) Balance Sheet Details

The consolidated balance sheets detail is as feleswf December 31, 2014 and 2013 :

As of December 31,

2014 2013
Prepaids and other current assets:
Prepaid expenses $ 10,35C $ 8,12¢
Restricted cash 9,054 8,32t
Income taxes receivable 3,50¢ 3,08¢
Other current assets 4,64: 7,094
Prepaids and other current assets $ 27,55( $ 26,63:
Fixed assets:
Furniture and equipment $ 17,76. $ 16,41
Software 78,59! 62,47
Leasehold improvements 5,34( 5,30¢
101,69: 84,18¢
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (68,819 (63,03)
Fixed assets, net $ 32,88( $ 21,15¢
Accounts payable and accrued expenses:
Trade accounts payable $ 30,03¢ $ 37,28¢
Subcontractor payable 33,474 22,05!
Professional liability reserve 7,38( 10,15¢
Overdraft 6,33¢ 238
Other 1,76z 1,58¢
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 78,997 % 71,31«
Accrued compensation and benefits;
Accrued payroll $ 21,857 $ 17,21¢
Accrued bonuses 15,19¢ 11,35¢
Accrued travel expense 2,41z 2,20z
Accrued health insurance reserve 1,871 2,021
Accrued workers compensation reserve 5,83( 5,31z
Deferred compensation 20,72¢ 17,73
Other 99 10€
Accrued compensation and benefits $ 67,99t $ 55,94¢
Other long-term liabilities:
Workers compensation reserve $ 13,85 $ 13,08¢
Professional liability reserve 30,72: 27,41«
Deferred rent 8,122 6,62
Unrecognized tax benefits 21,70¢ 27,17¢
Other 3,26¢ 2,71
Other long-term liabilities $ 77,67: $ 77,02
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(7) Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes from continuing @tems for the years ended December 31, 2014 , 26d2012 consists of the

following:

Current income taxes:
Federal
State
Foreign
Total
Deferred income taxes:
Federal
State
Total

Provision for income taxes from continuing openasio

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

10,787 $ 17,26¢ $ 3,33¢
2,88¢ 2,60¢ 727

— — &)
13,67( 19,87 4,05¢
10,43( 1,69¢ 5,66:
1,34¢ 1,33¢ 1,28¢
11,77¢ 3,031 6,951
25,44¢ $ 22,90: $ 11,01(

The Company’s income tax expense differs from theunt that would have resulted from applying thadefal statutory rate of 35% to
pretax income from continuing operations becaudaetffect of the following items during the yearsled December 31, 2014 , 2013 and

2012 :

Tax expense at federal statutory rate
State taxes, net of federal benefit

Non-deductible expenses
Unrecognized tax benefit
Other, net

Income tax expense from continuing operations

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
20,53: $ 19,54 $ 9,56:
2,551 2,30z 1,26¢
1,81¢ — —
971 1,95: 742
(422) (899) (55€)
25,44¢ $ 22,90 $ 11,01




The tax effects of temporary differences that gise to significant portions of deferred tax assetd deferred tax liabilities are
presented below as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 :

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013
Deferred tax assets:

Stock compensation $ 11,217 $ 11,99¢
Deferred revenue 572 1,00z
Allowance for doubtful accounts 1,467 1,552
Deferred compensation 8,14z 7,11¢
Accrued expenses, net 20,47¢ 23,07¢
Deferred rent 3,42( 3,20¢
Net operating losses 14,35« 19,84
State taxes 1,34¢ 44€
Other 2,26t 1,80z
Total deferred tax assets $ 63,25¢ $ 70,04¢

Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangibles $ (57,316 $ (56,12))
Fixed assets (8,457 (4,289
Prepaid expenses (1,429 (1,259
Total deferred tax liabilities $ (67,19¢ $ (61,66%)
Valuation allowance $ (1,229 $ (1,209
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) $ (5,160 $ 7,172

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax ssspanagement considers whether it is more littedy not that some portion or all of
deferred tax assets will not be realized. Manageelieves it is more likely than not that the Camp will realize the benefits of its defen
tax assets, net of the recorded valuation allowance

The deferred tax assets related to net operatssgto(“NOLS") include NOLs from the 2010 NFI and.2GhiftWise acquisitions. The
amount of NOL from acquired companies has beesubgct of an evaluation under the NOL limitatiotes of Internal Revenue Code
(“IRC”) Section 382 and corresponding state authemiand the balances reflect these limitations.

The amount of federal NOL carryforward that is #ale for use in years subsequent to December®HY B $31,364 , which is set to
expire by 2029 . The amount of state NOL carryfooshat is available for use in years subsequebeimember 31, 2014 is $47,688 , which
is set to expire at various dates between 2012684 .

A summary of the changes in the amount of unreaaghifax benefits (excluding interest and penalfi@s2014 , 2013 and 2012 is as
follows:

2014 2013 2012
Beginning balance of unrecognized tax benefits $ 22,570 $ 21,41F  $ 21,22:
Additions based on tax positions related to theentryear — 80¢ 1,09¢
Additions based on tax positions of prior years 317 34¢ —
Reductions due to lapse of applicable statutenaifdition — — (902)
Ending balance of unrecognized tax benefits $ 2289 $ 2257 $ 21,41

At December 31, 2014 , if recognized, approxima$$,056 would affect the effective tax rate (imthg interest and penalties).

The Company recognizes interest and penaltiesrbtatunrecognized tax benefits in income tax egpefhe Company has
approximately $5,815 , $4,605 and $3,178 of accimigdest and penalties related to unrecognizeth¢smefits at
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December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectivélg.amount of interest and penalties recognize®i2 2013 and 2012 were $1,211 ,
$1,427 and $468 , respectively.

The Company is subject to taxation in the U.S.\aamibus states and foreign jurisdictions. With fexceptions, as of December 31,
2014 , the Company is no longer subject to U.Serigld state, local or foreign examinations by tatharities for years before 2005. The
Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) completed its éaxlit of the Company for the years 2007, 2008, 20492010, and issued a Revenue
Agent Report (“RAR”) to the Company related todtsmpleted tax examination. The RAR seeks adjustsriierthe Company’s taxable
income for 2007-2010 and net operating loss carwdiods from 2005-2006. The adjustments to the Cayipdaxable income relate to the
proposed disallowance of certain per diems paalitchealthcare professionals. Concurrent with tARRhe Company received an
Employment Tax Examination Report (“ETERYr 2009 and 2010. The ETER adjustments propostiaial Company payroll tax liabilitie
and penalties related to the treatment of certaimtaxable per diem allowances and travel bendflis. positions in the RAR and ETER are
mutually exclusive. The RAR and ETER contain mulgtifax positions, some of which are contrary tcheather. The Company has filed a
Protest Letter for both the RAR and ETER and insetoddefend its position. The Company has heldra¢weeetings with the IRS Appeals
office throughout 2014. The Company does expediuéisn of these matters within the next twelve tisrbut cannot predict with certainty
the timing of such resolution or an estimated setédnt amount. However, the Company believes itxves will be adequate to cover the
anticipated settlement. Notwithstanding, the Comypaould adjust its provision for income taxes andafntingent tax liability based on futt
developments.

The IRS began a separate 2011-2012 income andlpb@xaudit during November 2013 and has recettiypleted its field work. We
are awaiting the IRS exam report but do not expleetssues to be different than the issues raiséitki last exam. The Company believes its
reserve for unrecognized tax benefits and contingenissues is adequate with respect to all opamsy

(8) Notes Payable and Credit Agreement

On April 18, 2014, the Company entered into a Gradreement (the “Credit Agreement”) with severaiders to provide for two credit
facilities (the “New Credit Facilities”) to replades prior credit facilities, including (A) a $22Z8)0 secured revolving credit facility (the
“Revolver”) that includes a $40,000 sublimit foetlssuance of letters of credit and a $20,000 sutdlor swingline loans and (B) a $150,000
secured term loan credit facility (the “Term Loarif) addition, the Credit Agreement provides that@mmpany may from time to time obt
an increase in the Revolver or the Term Loan o roain aggregate principal amount not to exce@b 00 subject to, among other
conditions, the arrangement of additional committaevith financial institutions reasonably accepgatol the Company and the administra
agent.

The Revolver carries an unused fee of 0.25% to% .38 annum and each standby letter of credit issn€elér the Revolver is subject
a letter of credit fee ranging from 1.50% to 2.2p86 annum of the average daily maximum amount abklto be drawn under the standby
letter of credit, in each case, depending on the@amy’s consolidated leverage ratio, as calculgtedterly in accordance with the Credit
Agreement. The Term Loan is subject to amortizatibprincipal of 5.00% per year of the original firetoan amount, which is $7,500 per
annum, and payable in equal quarterly installmeBdsrowings under the Term Loan and Revolver be@@réest at floating rates, at the
Company’s option, based upon either LIBOR plusraag of 1.50% to 2.25% or a base rate plus a sme@®0% to 1.25% . The applicable
spread is determined quarterly based upon the Cayfgeonsolidated leverage ratio, as calculatedtgtg in accordance with the Credit
Agreement. The interest rate for the outstandingrlleoan was 1.9% on a LIBOR basis and the intaegstfor the outstanding Revolver was
4.0% on a base rate basis as of December 31, 2014.

The Company used the proceeds from the New Creditifies to repay in full all outstanding indebteds under its prior credit
facilities and to pay related transaction costs.

In connection with obtaining the New Credit Fa@kt, the Company incurred $3,4i88fees paid to lenders and other third partiesch
were capitalized and are amortized to interest esg@ver the term of the New Credit Facilitiesadtdition, the Company wrote off $3,113 of
unamortized financing fees and original issue distowhich was recorded as loss on debt extingusstiim the accompanying consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year&eBaeember 31, 2014.

The New Credit Facilities are available for workicapital, capital expenditures, permitted acquisgiand general corporate purpose
the Company. The maturity date of the New Creddilfees is April 18, 2019. At December 31, 201Hetoutstanding balance of the Term
Loan was $144,375 , of which $7,500 is due in thet 12 months, and there was $18,000 outstandidgrithe Revolver. At December 31,
2014, with $9,380 of outstanding letters of creditaterialized by the Revolver, there was $197,628vailable credit under the Revolver.
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Annual principal maturities of the Term Loan ard@kws:

Year ending December 31, 2015 $ 7,50(
Year ending December 31, 2016 7,50(C
Year ending December 31, 2017 7,50(C
Year ending December 31, 2018 7,50C
Thereafter 114,37

$ 144,37!

The Company’s outstanding debt instruments at Deeerdl, 2014 and 2013 were secured by substandithibf the assets of the
Company and the common stock or equity interesiis a@fomestic subsidiaries.

The Credit Agreement contains various customairynaditive and negative covenants, including restitt on assumption of additional
indebtedness, declaration and payment of dividetidppsitions of assets, consolidation into anoémeity and allowable investments. It also
contains financial covenants that require the Comgga) not to exceed a certain maximum consolidégedrage ratio, as calculated in
accordance with the Credit Agreement, which idatit set at 4.00 to 1.00 but ultimately steps dawi3.50 to 1.00 beginning with the fiscal
guarter ending June 30, 2016, and (2) to maintamngmum consolidated interest coverage ratio 6020 1.00, as calculated in accordance
with the Credit Agreement.

Letters of Credit

At December 31, 2014 , the Company maintained antlitg standby letters of credit totaling $15,08&allateral in relation to its
professional liability insurance agreements, wasl@mpensation insurance agreements, and a capdfiae lease agreement. Of the
$15,006 outstanding letters of credit, the Compaany collateralized $5,626 in cash, cash equivalmdsnvestments and the remaining
amount has been collateralized by the Revolverst@nting standby letters of credit at Decembef813 totaled $27,691 .

(9) Retirement Plans

The Company maintains the AMN Services 401(k) Ratent Savings Plan (the “AMN Plan”), which the Camy believes complies
with the IRC Section 401(k) provisions. The AMN Pleovers all employees that meet certain age drat etigibility requirements. An
annual discretionary matching contribution is detieed by the Compensation and Stock Plan Committéiee Board of Directors each year.
Employer contributions under the AMN Plan were $5%365 and $0 for the years ended December 34, 29013 and 2012 , respectively.

The Company has a deferred compensation plan ftaicexecutives and key employees (the “Plafife Plan is not intended to be
qualified and is an unfunded plan. The Plan is cosed of deferred compensation and all related iecand losses attributable thereto.
Discretionary matching contributions to the Plam mrade that vest incrementally so that the empls/&dly vested in the match following
five years of employment with the Company. Under Btan, participants can defer up to 80% of thagebsalary, 90% of their bonus and
100% of their vested RSUs or vested PRSUs. An dmhiseretionary matching contribution is determirgdthe Compensation and Stock
Plan Committee of the Board of Directors each yEarployer contributions under the Plan were $58884 and $343 for the years ended
December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

(10) Capital Stock
(a) Preferred Stock

The Company has 10,000 shares of preferred stabb@zed for issuance in one or more series (ifolygreferred stock designated as
Series A Conditional Convertible Preferred Stoek)a par value of $0.01 per sharkt December 31, 2014 and 2013 , no shares of pesgfer
stock were outstanding.

(b) Treasury Stock

In connection with the 2010 acquisition of NFI, 48vares of the Company’s common stock remaineddroe as of December 31,
2012 for potential Company indemnification clairBsiring the second quarter of 2013, the Companyfamder NFI selling shareholders
agreed to release all 457 shares in escrow asvi&gllb) 204 shares were returned to the Compangefitliement of certain indemnification
claims, which were recorded as treasury stock ab@l@46 reduction to selling, general and admiafste expenses for the year ended
December 31, 2013; and 2) the remaining 253 siveees
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released from escrow to the former NFI selling shalders. During 2013, the Company cancelled atideall 204 shares of treasury stock.
Upon cancellation and retirement, these shares retwened to the status of authorized and unissued.

(11) Share-Based Compensation
(a) Equity Award Plans

Stock Option Plan

The Company established a stock option plan (theckSOption Plan”) to provide a means to attraat eetain employees. 4,1 t®tions
were authorized for issuance to be granted unéeBtbck Option Plan. Unless otherwise providedhatime of the grant, the options vest
become exercisable in increments of 25% on eatihediirst four anniversaries of the date of gr&mtions granted under the Stock Option
Plan expire on the tenth anniversary of the grate.dOn April 12, 2006, 371 shares of common steskrved for future issuance under The
Stock Option Plan were rolled into the Equity Phahijch is discussed below. There will be no furtbguity awards granted from the Stock
Option Plan.

Equity Plan

The Company established the AMN Healthcare Equiy Pas amended or amended and restated from ditirae, the “Equity Plan”),
which has been approved by the Company’s stockimldé the time of the Equity Plan’s adoption irDB0 equity awards, based on the
Company’s common stock, could be issued for a maxirof 723 shares plus the number of shares of canstozk underlying any grants
under the Stock Option Plan that are forfeitedceded or terminated (other than by exercise) frowh after the effective date of the Equity
Plan. Pursuant to the Equity Plan, stock optiortssiack appreciation rights (“SARs”) granted havaaimum contractual life of ten years
and exercise prices will be determined at the tifngrant and will be no less than fair market vadfi¢he underlying common stock on the
date of grant. Any shares to be issued under thiyEBlan will be issued by the Company from auiteadt but unissued common stock or
shares of common stock reacquired by the CompanyAmil 18, 2007, April 9, 2009 and April 18, 201the Company amended the Equity
Plan, with stockholder approval, to increase th@lner of shares authorized under the Equity PlaB,090 , 1,850 and 2,4Q0espectively. A
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, 2,4812ak73 shares of common stock were reserved fordigrants under the Equity Plan.

Other Plans

From time to time, we grant, and have granted,daaployees inducement awards outside of the Equéty ollectively, “Other
Plans”), which have consisted of SARs,options orRSithich generally have three -year cliff vestinghva potential for accelerated vesting
based on the Company’s achievement of selectedt&tdinancial performance. Although these awardsat made under the Equity Plan,
the key terms and conditions of the grant are difjiche same as equity awards made under the EBLgh.

Additionally, in February 2014, the Company estti®id the 2014 Employment Inducement Plan, whidgtrves for issuance 2Ghare
of common stock for prospective employees of then@any. As of December 31, 2014, 200 shares of camstark remained available for
future grants under the 2014 Employment InducerRéart.

(b) Share-Based Compensation

Restricted Stock Units

RSUs granted under the Equity Plan generally erititt holder to receive, at the end of a vestimgpgea specified number of shares of
the Company’s common stock.
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The following table summarizes RSU and PRSU agtilat non-vested awards for the years ended DeceB81he014 , 2013 and 2012 :

Weighted Average

Grant Date
Fair Value per
Number of Shares Share
Unvested at January 1, 2012 152¢ $ 7.74
Granted—RSUs 45¢ % 6.7C
Granted—PRSUs 468 $ 8.1t
Vested (71e) $ 7.98
Canceled/forfeited/expired (78) $ 6.6¢€
Unvested at December 31, 2012 1,65¢ $ 7.5%
Granted—RSUs 28 % 12.8¢
Granted—PRSUs 291 $ 13.8¢
Vested (588 $ 7.0z
Canceled/forfeited/expired (100 $ 13.0¢
Unvested at December 31, 2013 1637 $ 9.7:
Granted—RSUs 361 $ 13.7¢
Granted—PRSUs 53t $ 14.9i
Vested (83 $ 8.6:
Canceled/forfeited/expired (220 $ 12.1¢
Unvested at December 31, 2014 157t % 11.9¢

As of December 31, 2014 , there was $7,742 unrezedicompensation cost related to non-vested RBUPRSUs. The Company
expects to recognize such cost over a period ofda8s. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , theeg@tg intrinsic value of the RSUs and
PRSUs outstanding was $30,876 and $24,070 , resplgct

Stock Options and SARs

Stock options entitle the holder to purchase, athd of a vesting period, a specified number afeshof the Company’s common stock
at a price per share set at the date of grant. &hRtte the holder to receive, at the end of dimggeriod, shares of the Company’s common
stock equal in value to the difference betweerettarcise price of the SAR, which is set at the dagrant, and the fair market value of the
Company’s common stock on the date of exercise.
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A summary of stock option and SAR activity under 8tock Option Plan and the Equity Plan and OtlersPare as follows:

Stock Option Plan Equity Plan and Other Plans
Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average
Number Exercise Price Number Exercise Price

Outstanding per Share Outstanding per Share
Outstanding at December 31, 2011 781 % 14.0¢ 1,50 $ 10.1C
Granted —  $ — — % —
Exercised (55 $ 9.6¢ (143 $ 8.1C
Canceled/forfeited/expired (28) $ 15.6: (11¢) $ 7.5¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 69¢ $ 14.3¢ 1,241 $ 10.57
Granted — % — — % —
Exercised (209 $ 11.2¢ (132 $ 8.31
Canceled/forfeited/expired — % — 13 3 15.1¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 58 $ 14.9: 1,09 $ 10.7¢
Granted —  $ — —  $ —
Exercised 117 $ 14.8¢ (142) $ 11.5¢%
Canceled/forfeited/expired (227 $ 14.9¢ 6) $ 19.6¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 24t $ 14.9: 94¢ $ 10.61
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2014 24 $ 14.9: 94¢  $ 10.61
Exercisable at December 31, 2014 248§ 14.9: 94¢  $ 10.61

As of December 31, 2014 , all stock options and SMRre fully vested. The total intrinsic value tdck options and SARs exercised
was $770 , $980 and $453 for 2014 , 2013 and 20dspectively. At December 31, 2014 and 2013 tdted intrinsic value of stock options
and SARs outstanding and exercisable was $10,1d 351446 , respectively.

ShareBased Compensation

Total share-based compensation expense for the gaded December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 wad@as<$o

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Share-based employee compensation, before tax $ 7,151 $ 6,12t $ 6,224
Related income tax benefits (2,789 (2,389 (2,409
Share-based employee compensation, net of tax $ 4,37, $ 3,74: % 3,821

(12) Commitments and Contingencies
(a) Legal

From time to time, the Company is involved in vasgdawsuits, claims, investigations, and proceesithgt arise in the ordinary course
of business. Additionally, some of its clients nadgo become subject to claims, governmental inggiiaind investigations and legal actions
relating to services provided by the Company’s theake professionals. From time to time, and deipgnapon the particular facts and
circumstances, the Company may be subject to indsation obligations under its contracts with swudients relating to these matters.
Certain of above-referenced matters may includewdptve claims for substantial or indeterminateoants of damages. The Company
records a liability when management believes thiathoth probable that a loss has been incurrddf@amount can be reasonably estimated.
Significant judgment is required to determine bpthbability and the estimated amount. The Companiews these provisions at least
quarterly and adjusts them accordingly to reflaetitnpact of negotiations, settlements, rulingsj@edof legal counsel, and updated
information. During the first quarter of 2014, t@empany completed the settlement of a wage anddiass action (and a related action) for
an immaterial amount. With regards to outstandass kcontingencies as of December 31, 2014, the @ayripelieves that the amount or
estimable range of reasonably possible loss, will @ther individually or in the aggregate, havaaterial a
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dverse effect on its business, consolidated firmaisition, results of operations or cash flowswdver, the outcome of litigation is
inherently uncertain, and therefore, if one or muirthese legal matters were resolved against tregany for amounts in excess of
management’s expectations, the Company’s resuttp@fations and financial condition, including ipaxticular reporting period, could be
materially adversely affected.

(b) Leases

The Company leases certain office facilities angigent under various operating leases. The Compagognizes rent expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Futurarmim lease payments under noncancelable operaasg$ (with initial or remaining lease
terms in excess of one year) as of December 34 afH as follows:

Operating
Leases
Years ending December 31,

2015 $ 13,21
2016 13,78¢
2017 12,27
2018 11,66:
2019 11,78
Thereafter 92,94¢
Total minimum lease payments $ 155,66¢

On January 26, 2015, the Company entered into-gekly operating lease agreement for office spa@mlfas, Texas that will replace
its current operating lease agreement for its gyifexas offices, which expires in August 2015.8a1t payments under the new lease
agreement will begin in September 2015 and the ¢stamated base rent payments will be approxirgai2B,956 over the life of the lease,
which has been included in the above total mininke@se payments table.

Rent expense under operating leases for contimpegations was $14,136 , $14,205 , and $15,18th&years ended December 31,
2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

(13) Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Year Ended December 31, 2014

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Total Year
(In thousands, except per share data)

Revenue $ 240,88. $ 250,91 $ 264,58: $ 279,64¢ $ 1,036,02
Gross profit $ 73,95¢ % 77,15¢ % 80,30¢ $ 84,69¢ $ 316,11°
Net income $ 7,630 $ 7,19 % 8,49¢ $ 9,89 $ 33,217
Net income per share from:

Basic $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1t $ 0.1¢ $ 021 $ 0.71

Diluted $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1t $ 0.1¢ $ 0.2C $ 0.6¢
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Year Ended December 31, 2013

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Total Year

(In thousands, except per share data)

Revenue $ 252,12( $ 253,940 $ 257,09 $ 248,65¢ $ 1,011,81
Gross profit $ 73,000 $ 74,41: % 75,667 $ 74,19: % 297,28(
Net income $ 756 $ 8,39¢ $ 8,61t $ 8,35¢ $ 32,93
Net income per share from:
Basic $ 017 $ 0.1t $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1t $ 0.7z
Diluted $ 0.1 $ 0.1t $ 0.1t $ 017 $ 0.6¢

(14) Subsequent Events

Onward Healthcare, Locum Leaders and Medefis Acqtien

On January 7, 2015, the Company completed its asitigui of Onward Healthcare, Locum Leaders and Msdem OGH, LLC for
$82,500 in cash. Onward Healthcare is a nationaenand allied healthcare staffing firm, Locum Lexads a national locum tenens provider,
and Medefis is a leading provider of a SaaS-basedor management system for healthcare facilities.
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Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants orcdignting and Financial
Disclosure

None.

Item 9A.  Controls and Procedure
(1) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedurg

We carried out an evaluation, under the superviaimhwith the participation of our management,udaig our principal executive
officer and principal financial officer, of the efftiveness of our disclosure controls and proceda® defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15
(e) of the Exchange Act. Based on that evaluation Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial i0&r have concluded that our disclosure
controls and procedures as of December 31, 2014 gféactive to ensure that information requiretdéadisclosed by us in reports that we file
or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, msm@, summarized and reported within the time gergpecified in the SEC’s rules and
forms.

(2) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Controlover Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting, as such term is
defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act. Unithe supervision and with the participation of management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, wenclucted an evaluation of the effectiveness ofimernal control over financial reporting
based on the framework internal Control—Integrated Framework (201i8sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike
Treadway Commission (COSO). Because of its inhdmaitations, internal control over financial refiog may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibaffectiveness to future periods are subjechéorisk that controls may become inadeq
because of changes in conditions, or that the degfreompliance with the policies or procedures mhetgriorate. Based on our evaluation
under the framework set forth internal Control—Integrated Framework (201,3nanagement concluded that our internal contrel ov
financial reporting was effective as of DecemberZ114 .

The effectiveness of our internal control over fioil reporting as of December 31, 2014 has beditealby KPMG LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm,taged in its report, which we include herein.

(3) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Repating

There were no changes in our internal control éwancial reporting that occurred during the quaeteded December 31, 2014 that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likelynaterially affect, our internal control overdimcial reporting.
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(4) Report of Independent Registered Public Accouintg Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
AMN Healthcare Services, Inc.:

We have audited AMN Healthcare Services, Inc. afmsisliaries’ (the Company) internal control overaficial reporting as of
December 31, 2014 , based on criteria establishbdearnal Control—Integrated Framework (201i8sued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOg Cbhmpany’s management is responsible for maimgieffective internal control
over financial reporting and for its assessmerthefeffectiveness of internal control over finahcgporting, included in the accompanying
Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control dvi@ancial Reporting. Our responsibility is to esgs an opinion on the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting basedoam audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the staisdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightri8q@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigéfénternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness eaististesting and evaluating the design and operafiiectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. Our audit also included perfaggreiuch other procedures as we considered necesghgycircumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opini

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over fircgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdegtessary to permit preparation of financakestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeipnrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (Bjige reasonable assurance regarding preventiomely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companygseds that could have a material effect on then@iizh statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, AMN Healthcare Services, Inc. antsidiaries maintained, in all material respedtgctive internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2014 , basedriteria established internal Control—Integrated Framework (201i8sued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of AMN Healthcare 8esyinc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 288d42013 , and the related
consolidated statements of comprehensive incoroeklsblders’ equity, and cash flows for each ofythars in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2014 , and our report dated Februarg@l5 expressed an unqualified opinion on thossaidated financial statements.

/sl KPMG LLP

San Diego, California
February 24, 2015
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ltem 9B. Other Information

None.

PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govente

Information required by this item, other than thiormation below concerning our Code of EthicsSenior Financial Officers and
stockholder recommended nominations, is incorpdrhyereference to the Proxy Statement to be digiibin connection with our Annual
Meeting of Stockholders currently scheduled to &kl lon April 22, 2015 (the “2015 Annual Meeting RydStatement”) under the headings
“Election of Directors — Nominees for the BoardDifectors,” “Executive Compensation Disclosure -nNoairector Executive Officers,”
“Security Ownership and Other Matters — Sectiora)l 8eneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance,” thiele set forth in “Corporate
Governance — Committees of the Board” identifyimgong other things, members of our Board committes “Corporate Governance —
Committees of the Board — Audit Committee.”

We have adopted a Code of Ethics for Senior Firzdu@fficers that applies to our principal executoféicer, principal financial officer,
and principal accounting officer or any person garfing similar functions, which we post on our wigh# the “Corporate Governance” link
located at www.amnhealthcare.com/investors. Wenthte publish any amendment to, or waiver from,Glogle of Ethics for Senior Financ
Officers on our website. We will provide any persasthout charge, a copy of such Code of Ethicsnupadtten request, which may be mai
to 12400 High Bluff Drive, Suite 100, San Diego Jifbania 92130, Attn: Corporate Secretary.

There have been no material changes to the proegthyrwhich stockholders may recommend nomineean@oard since we last
disclosed information related to such procedures.

ltem 11. Executive Compensatio

Information required by this item is incorporatedrbference to the 2015 Annual Meeting Proxy Stat@minder the headings
“Compensation, Discussion and Analysis,” “Execu@@mpensation Disclosure,” “Director Compensatind &tock Ownership Guidelines —
Director Compensation Table,” “Corporate Governan@&@oard Role In Risk Oversight,” “Corporate Gowamne — Committees of the Board
Compensation Committee — Compensation Committegltks and Insider Participation,” and “CompersatCommittee Report.”

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aidbnagement and Relate
Stockholder Matters

Information required by this item, other than thfermation below concerning our equity compensagitams, is incorporated by
reference to the 2015 Annual Meeting Proxy Stateraeder the heading “Security Ownership and Othattéts — Security Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.”
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The following table sets forth information as ofd@enber 31, 2014 regarding compensation plans walieh our equity securities are
authorized for issuance.

@ (b) (©)
Number of Weighted-Average
Securities to Exercise Number of Securities Remaining
be Issued Price of Available for Future Issuance Under
upon Outstanding Equity Compensation Plans
Exercise of Options, Warrants (Excluding Securities Reflected in
) 6)
Outstanding Options, Warrants and Rights and Rights ($) Column (a))
Plan Category
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders 2,673,68 $ 12.01 2,420,58!
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holdefs 94,20F $ 4,58 200,00(
Total 2,767,88 ¢ 11.5C 2,620,58:

(1) Includes stock options, SARs, RSUs and PRSUIsplirposes of this table, we set forth one shhoeimmon stock to be issued under the
exercise of each SAR. Because of the nature ofR, ##e number of shares that are actually issued egercise of a SAR may be more
or less than one share of common stock. The walggerage exercise price set forth in this tabtdusles the effect of 573,113 shares of
RSUs and 987,948 shares of PRSUs, which have moisg@rice.

(2) We no longer issue awards under our Stock @Rian. Under the Equity Plan, however, we mayward shares that are forfeited,
expired or settled for cash under our Stock Opfitan. Additionally, under the Equity Plan, eachrsh@a) tendered or held back upon
exercise of an option or settlement of an awarcbteer the exercise price or tax withholding witegect to an award, or (b) subject to
SARs that are not issued in connection with théesaent of the SARs on exercise thereof, is madéaile to be re-awarded. This figure
does not include shares underlying our Stock OfRilam or the Equity Plan that are forfeited, caedealr terminated after December 31,
2014. See “ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supgitamy Data—Notes to Consolidated Financial StatesreNote (11), Share-Based
Compensation.”

(3) On occasion, we have made employee award imdeicieequity grants to key employees outside otiipeity Plan. Although these awards
were made outside of the Equity Plan, the key teaantsconditions of each grant are the same in atléral respects as equity awards
made under the Equity Plan. See additional infoionah “Item 8. Financial Statements and SupplemgnbData—Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements—Note (11), Share-Based Comafiens’ Additionally, in 2014, the Board adopte@ tGompanys 2014 Employmel
Inducement Plan under which we may issue up to0®@0shares of our common stock to prospective eyppk As of December 31,
2014, no equity awards had been made under the R@ployment Inducement Plan.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abotector Independenc
Information required by this item is incorporatedrbference to the 2015 Annual Meeting Proxy Statetnander the headings

“Corporate Governance — Board Policy on Conflidtinterest and Related Party Transactions,” “Coap®Governance — Director
Independence,” and “Corporate Governance — Comasityé the Board.”

Item 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Servict

Information required by this item is incorporatedrbference to the 2015 Annual Meeting Proxy Statetunder the heading
“Ratification of the Selection of Independent Régied Public Accounting Firm.”
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PART IV

Item 15.  Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul
(a) Documents filed as part of the report.
(1) Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEinm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,£€12013
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomthéoyears ended December 31, 2014 , 2013
and 2012
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equitytlieryears ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the ysaded December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules have been omitted because the retjinfermation is presented in the financial statata@r notes thereto, the amounts
involved are not significant or the schedules areapplicable.

(3) Exhibits
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Exhibit
Number Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of Decenhe2d14 by and among Onward Healthcare, Inc., AMdlthcare, Inc.,
Terrell Acquisition Corp., and OGH, LLC (Incorpoedtby reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Registra@tisrent Report on Form
8-K dated January 7, 2015, filed with the SEC amuday 9, 2015).

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatioAMN Healthcare Services, Inc. (Incorporated bference to Exhibit 3.1
of the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-Kthoe fiscal year ended December 31, 2001, filed #i¢hSEC on March 18,
2002).

3.2 Seventh Amended and Restated By-laws of AMN Health&ervices, Inc., effective July 27, 2010 (Incoaped by reference
to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant’s Quarterly RepamtForm 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20&@,with the SEC on
July 30, 2010).

3.2 Certificate of Designations of Series A ConditioGainvertible Preferred Stock (Incorporated by refiee to Exhibit 3.1 of the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Au@9®s 2010, filed with the SEC on September 1, 2010

4.1 Specimen Stock Certificate (Incorporated by refeecio Exhibit 4.1 of the Registrant’s Annual RepmrtForm 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2001, filed withSB€ on March 18, 2002).

4.2 Credit Agreement, dated as of April 18, 2014, bgt among AMN Healthcare, Inc., as borrower, AMN Hleehre Services,
Inc., AMN Services, LLC, O'Grady-Peyton Internat&drfUSA), Inc., AMN Staffing Services, LLC, MerritHawkins &
Associates, LLC, AMN Healthcare Allied, Inc., St&fare, Inc., AMN Allied Services, LLC, Rx Pro Hdalt LC,
Nursefinders, LLC, Linde Health Care Staffing, |remd Shiftwise, Inc., as guarantors, the lenddgstified on the signature
pages thereto, as lenders, and SunTrust Bank naisiattative agent (Incorporated by reference thikix 4.1 filed with the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for gu@rter ended June 30, 2014, filed with the SEGugust 1, 2014).

10.1 Office Lease, dated as of April 2, 2002, betweelndyiRealty, L.P. and AMN Healthcare, Inc. (Incorated by reference to
Exhibit 10.45 of the Registrant’s Registration 8taént on Form S-1 (File No. 333-86952), filed vifie SEC on April 25,
2002).

10.z Third Amendment to Office Lease, dated as of Juhe20814, between Kilroy Realty, L.P. and AMN Heatite, Inc.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 filedhwthe Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10e@tfie quarter ended June
30, 2014, filed with the SEC on August 1, 2014).

10.Z2  Stock Option Plan (Management Contract or Compeng&tan or Arrangement) (Incorporated by referetoc&ppendix 2 of
the Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement on Sithe 14A, filed with the SEC on April 14, 2004).

10.4 Form of Stock Option Plan Stock Option Agreemenafdigement Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arraagem
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 filedlwthe Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10e€tfie quarter ended
March 31, 2005, filed with the SEC on May 9, 2005).

10.5  Stock Option Plan Stock Option Agreement, datedf &eptember 28, 2005, between AMN Healthcare 8esyilnc. and
Douglas D. Wheat (Management Contract or Compens&ian or Arrangement) (Incorporated by referetacExhibit 10.3 of
the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qttfer quarter ended September 30, 2005, filed wghsBC on November 7,
2005).

10.€  Stock Option Plan Stock Option Agreement, datedf&eptember 28, 2005, between AMN Healthcare Sesyilnc. and R.
Jeffrey Harris (Management Contract or Compensd®tem or Arrangement) (Incorporated by referencexioibit 10.4 of the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for guarter ended September 30, 2005, filed with th€ 8& November 7,
2005).

10.7 AMN Healthcare Equity Plan, as Amended and Rest@flthagement Contract or Compensatory Plan or gearent)
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 filediwthe Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10e€tfie quarter ended
March 31, 2014, filed with the SEC on May 2, 2014).



10.¢ Form of AMN Healthcare Equity Plan Stock Appre@atiRight Agreement-Birector (Management Contract or Compensa
Plan or Arrangement).**

10.€ Form of AMN Healthcare Equity Plan Restricted Stakt Agreement—Director (Management Contract ompensatory
Plan or Arrangement).**

10.1C Form of AMN Healthcare Equity Plan Stock AppreaatiRight Agreement—Officer (Management ContracdCompensatory
Plan or Arrangement).**

10.11 Form of AMN Healthcare Equity Plan Restricted Stabikit Agreement—Officer (Management Contract or Compensatory |
or Arrangement).**
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Exhibit
Number

10.1Z

10.1:

10.1¢4

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1%

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.2C

10.21

10.2:Z

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.2¢

Description
Form of AMN Healthcare Equity Plan Restricted Stakit Agreement—Officer (Management Contract or Compensatory |
or Arrangement) (Incorporated by reference to ExHib.1 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report onRdr0-Q for the quarter
ended March 31, 2010, filed with the SEC on Mag{10).

Form of AMN Healthcare Equity Plan Performance Retstd Stock Unit AgreementOfficer (TSR) (Management Contract
Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) (Incorporatetefgrence to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s QemrdytReport on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2011, filethwlie SEC on May 6, 2011).

Form of AMN Healthcare Equity Plan Restricted Stalrkit Agreement—Director (One Year Vesting and IBatent)
(Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Agarant) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1G.the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter entlete 30, 2012, filed with the SEC on August 7,201

Form of AMN Healthcare Equity Plan Performance Retstd Stock Unit Agreement—Officer (Adjusted EBIADMargin)
(Management Contract or Compensation Plan or Aeamant) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 13.the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endedch 31, 2013, filed with the SEC on May 3, 2013)

Form of AMN Healthcare Equity Plan Restricted Stakit Agreement—Officer (Management Contract or Compensatory |
or Arrangement) (Incorporated by reference to ExHi.2 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report oned0-Q for the quarter
ended March 31, 2014, filed with the SEC on Mag®4).

Form of AMN Healthcare Equity Plan Performance Retstd Stock Unit AgreementOfficer (TSR) (Management Contract
Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) (Incorporatetefgrence to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrant’s QerdytReport on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2014, filethwlie SEC on May 2, 2014).

Form of AMN Healthcare Equity Plan Restricted Stalrkit Agreement—Director (One Year Vesting with Befl)
(Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Agarant) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1G.the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endedch 31, 2014, filed with the SEC on May 2, 2014)

AMN Healthcare Services, Inc. Senior ManagementuBdPlan, as Amended and Restated (Management Cootra
Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) (Incorporatetefgrence to Appendix A of the Registrant’s DefirgtProxy Statement
on Schedule 14A, filed on March 9, 2012).

The 2005 Amended and Restated Executive Nonqualfieess Plan of AMN Healthcare, Inc., effectivaukay 1, 2009
(Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Agarant) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1G.the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter enSeptember 30, 2008, filed with the SEC on Novenh@008).

Employment Agreement, dated as of May 4, 2005, betwAMN Healthcare, Inc. and Susan R. Nowakowsta @usan R.
Salka) (Management Contract or Compensatory Pla#rrangement) (Incorporated by reference to ExHibi3 of the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for go@arter ended March 31, 2005, filed with the SEQ/ay 9, 2005).

First Amendment to Employment Agreement, datedf &ebruary 6, 2008, between AMN Healthcare, Incl 8osan R.
Nowakowski (aka Susan R. Salka) (Management Cartra€ompensatory Plan or Arrangement).***

Executive Severance Agreement between AMN Healghdac. and Denise L. Jackson, dated February@8 Pdanagement
Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement).***

Executive Severance Agreement between AMN Healghdac. and Ralph Henderson, dated February 6, gd@@agement
Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement).***

Executive Severance Agreement between AMN Healghdac. and Brian M. Scott, effective as of Januzty2011
(Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Agarant) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 3, 204l fvith the SEC on January 5, 2011).

Form of Indemnification Agreement—Officer and Ditecc(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14taf Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year esthidecember 31, 2009, filed with the SEC on MarcB®,0).
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Exhibit
Number

10.27

211

23.1

31.1

31.z

32.1

32.2

101.IN<

101.SCt

101.CAL

101.DEF

101.LAB

101.PRE

Description
Stockholders Agreement between AMN Healthcare $esyilnc. and the Persons Listed on Schedule éd daty 28, 2010
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of tregRtrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for tharer ended June 30,
2010, filed with the SEC on July 30, 2010).

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.*

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.*

Certification by Susan R. Salka pursuant to Rule-18(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.*
Certification by Brian M. Scott pursuant to RuleaiB4(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.*

Certification by Susan R. Salka pursuant to 18 €.Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to SectiorBie Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.*

Certification by Brian M. Scott pursuant to 18 WLSSection 1350, as adopted pursuant to SectiorBf& Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.*

XBRL Instance Document.*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutrie
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh&n
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doentri

*%

*kk

Filed herewith.

Incorporated by reference to the applicable exluibihe Registrant’'s Current Report on Form 8-Kedafpril 12, 2006, filed
with the SEC on April 14, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to the applicable exlubihe Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-Keddtebruary 12, 2008,
filed with the SEC on February 12, 2008.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d)f the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigrik thereunto duly authorized.

AMN HEALTHCARE SERVICES, INC.

/sl SUSAN R. SALKA

Susan R. Salka
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 24, 2015

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Examge Act of 1934, this report has been signed beldw the following persons
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacitiesndicated and on February 24, 2015 .

/sl SUSAN R. SALKA

Susan R. Salka
Director, President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ BRIAN M. ScoTT

Brian M. Scott
Chief Accounting Officer,
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Accounting and Financial Officer)

/s!/ DouGLAS D. WHEAT

Douglas D. Wheat
Director and Chairman of the Board

/s/ MARK G. FOLETTA

Mark G. Foletta
Director

/'s!/ R. JEFFREY H ARRIS

R. Jeffrey Harris
Director

/s/ MICHAEL M.E. JOHNS

Michael M.E. Johns
Director

/s/ MARTHA H. M ARSH

Martha H. Marsh
Director

/s/  ANDREW M. STERN

Andrew M. Stern
Director

/s!/ PauL E. WEAVER

Paul E. Weaver
Director
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Subsidiaries of the Registrant, as of December 32014

Subsidiary

AMN Allied Services, LLC

AMN Healthcare Allied, Inc.

AMN Healthcare, Inc.

AMN Services, LLC

AMN Staffing Services, LLC

Avantas, LLC

Linde Health Care Staffing, Inc.

Merritt, Hawkins & Associates, LLC

Nursefinders, LLC

O’Grady-Peyton International (Europe) Limited
O’Grady Peyton International (India) Private Linaite
O’Grady Peyton International Recruitment U.K. Lied
O’Grady-Peyton International (SA) (Proprietary)niiied
O’Grady-Peyton International (USA), Inc.

Rx Pro Health, LLC

ShiftWise, Inc.

Spectrum Insurance Company, Inc.

Staff Care, Inc.

Jurisdiction of
Organization

Delaware

Texas

Nevada

North Carolina

Delaware

Nebraska

Missouri

California

Texas
WitKingdom

India

United Kingdom

South Africa
Massagctits

Colorado

Oregon

Hawaii

Delaware

Exhibit 21.1



Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
AMN Healthcare Services, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference in riggistration statements (No. 333-73482, No. 333695, No. 333-133227, No. 333-
133305, No. 333-142187, No. 333-158523, No. 333580 No. 333-180857, and No. 333-194484) on Forén & AMN Healthcar
Services, Inc. (the Company) of our reports datedrirary 24, 2015 with respect to the consolidated balance shdetiseoCompany ar
subsidiaries, as of December 31, 2014 and 2013ftendelated consolidated statements of comprelemscome, stockholdergquity, an
cash flows for each of the years in the three-yeaiod ended December 31, 2014nd the effectiveness of internal control oveaficia
reporting as of December 31, 2014 , which repopgear in the December 31, 2014 Annual Report omFP@DK of AMN Healthcar
Services, Inc.

/sl KPMG LLP

San Diego, California
February 24, 2015



Exhibit 31.1

Certification Pursuant To
Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 39

I, Susan R. Salka, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of ANHgalthcare Services, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaderny untrue statement of a material fact or dnittate a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstancesuwtieh such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and céiaivs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15
() for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedoitas designed under our

supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durithg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaing, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under our

supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggttte reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentibisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #gpsnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the te@ig’s internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrant’'s most

recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth disguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer andadve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorternal control over financial reporting, toet
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee efrétgistrant’s board of directors (or persons perfiog the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal corvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveaanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

/sl SUSAN R. SALKA

Susan R. Salka
Director, President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: February 24, 2015



Exhibit 31.2

Certification Pursuant To
Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 39

I, Brian M. Scott, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of ANHgalthcare Services, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaderny untrue statement of a material fact or dnittate a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstancesuwtieh such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this

report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and céiaivs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15

() for the registrant and have:
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedoitas designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to us by

others within those entities, particularly durithg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaing, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggttte reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles;
¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentibisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #gpsnt based on such evaluation; and
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the te@ig’s internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrant’'s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth disguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer andadve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorternal control over financial reporting, toet
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee efrétgistrant’s board of directors (or persons perfiog the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal corvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveaanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s internal

control over financial reporting.

/s/ BRIAN M. ScoTT

Brian M. Scott
Chief Accounting Officer,
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Accounting and Financial Officer)

Date: February 24, 2015



Exhibit 32.1
AMN Healthcare Services, Inc.

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of AMN Healtine Services, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Ktfoe period ended December 31, 2014 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiorthe date hereof (the “Report”), I, Susan R. Sdkasident and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section013% adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasb@nley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExdeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl SUSAN R. SALKA

Susan R. Salka
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 24, 2015



Exhibit 32.2
AMN Healthcare Services, Inc.

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of AMN Healtine Services, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Ktfoe period ended December 31, 2014 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissionhe date hereof (the “Report”), I, Brian M. Sc@hief Accounting Officer, Chief Financial Officand
Treasurer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18.0. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Seafiérof the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExdeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl BRIAN M. ScoTT

Brian M. Scott
Chief Accounting Officer,
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Date: February 24, 2015



